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Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Strategic report
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019

The Diractors present their Strategic report on the Group for the 52 weeks endad 25 April 2018 (2018: 53 weeks
endad 26 April 2018).

Reviow of the Business

The principal activity of the Group le the operation of short breek holiday villages. The Center Parcs business
operates five holiday villages in the Unlted Kingdom, at Sherwood Forest In Noltinghamshire, Eveden Forest In
Suffok, Longleat Farest In Witshire, Whinfell Forest in Cumbria and Wobumn Foreet In Badfordshire,

Centor Pascs targets the premium sector of the UK famlly short break market, offering an sacape from the stresses
and straing of modem Iife and helping familes coms together.

Wwith recant frenda showing an Increase In family short breaks, particularly in the UK, the Center Parcs concept la
more relevant today than at any point in its history in the UK market. Center Parcs continually invests heavily to
ansurs that we dellver high qualliy service, accommodation and fadilities, combined with an unrivalied array of
activiies that cater for the most disceming of families, as weall as the most changeabls of British weather. There Is
nothing prescriptive about a short break at Center Parcs, with each famity free to chooee to do as littie or as much ss
they wish. Center Parcs remains a unique proposition for families In the UK market with consistently high occupancy
and continusd revenue and EBITDA growth, This ls combined with enviable guest fesdback scores and conslstently
high levels of retuming guests.

Each of the Group’s holiday villages is set in a forest snvironmant amongst approximately 400 acres of forest and
lakes and i= open 365 days per year. Woodland, water and a natural environment are the essential elements of a
Contar Pares breek. Within the comforteble, quiet and famity-friendly setiing, the Center Parcs villages provide
guoests with high-quality accommodation and more than 150 leisure and spa activiies. There are over 4,300 uniis of
accommodation across the five villages. The focal point and key attracion of each viilege is an all-weather indoor
sub-tropical swimming peradise, featuring a selaction of water activities Including a wave pool, river slides and rides,
chilkdren's pools and Jecuzzis, Other on-site experiencss inciude outdoor activities such as cycling, beating and
qm&ﬂees:whdoorl activiles such as ten-pin bowiing, badminton and pottery; and leisure amenities such as spas,
dining and 5

Financial performance

The results of the Group for the period show a profit after tmation of £62.8 miiion {2018: profit of £51.5 millon).
Adjusted EBITDA, being eamings before Interesi, taxation, depraciation, emortisation and exceptionalnon-underying
tems was £232.6 million (2018: £228.4 milion).

During the period endad 25 April 2010, the Group Incurmed an axceptional/nan-undatlying finance cost of £7.7 million
in respect of a refinancing of the Group’s debt. Taxation on this expsnse was also freated as an exceptional/non-
underiying tem.

On 20 November 2018 the Group lssusd £100.0 million of additional A4 secured notes, togathar with £379.5 milkon
of New Class A5 notee due to expire In August 2028. Part of the procoeds of thase new notes wore used to selfle
the Group's Class A3 notes, which wera due to mature in February 2020.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 'Leases’ during the period. Details are sat out in note 2 to the financial stataments.

During the prior period ended 26 Aprl 2018, the Group Incurred an exceptional/non-underlying finance cost of £26.8
milon in respect of a refinencing of the Group's debt The Group also Incumed exceptional/non-underying
adminisiretive expenses of £2.3 milkon, representing £1.8 million of costs relating to legal claims and asesociated
settiements and £0.7 milllon of one-off restructuring and reorganieation costs. Taxation on these exponses was aleo
treatad as an exceptional/non-underying ltem, as wae a credit of £1.8 milkon In reapect of a one-off group relef
adjustment.

On 15 June 2017 the Group lssued £100.0 million of additional A4 secured notes, together with £730.0 million of New
Class B notes, dMided Into £480.0 miion 4.250% notas due to explre In August 2022 and £250.0 millon 4.875%
notes due fo mature In August 2025. Pant of the proceeds of thess new notes ware used to settie the Group's Clase
B2 notes, which wena due to mature In August 2020.



Center Parcs (oldlgs 1) le

Strategic report
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

Key parformance Indicators
Tha Directors use the following key performance indicators to set targets and measure performance:
s Revenua; Revonue for the period was £480.2 million (2018:; £4686.0 million).
» Adjusted EBITDA: Eamings before Interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional/non-
underlying ltems. Adjustad EBITDA for the period was £232.8 million {2018; £228.4 miklon).
¢ Occupancy: the average number of units of accommodation occupled as a percentage of the total number
avallable. Occupancy for the period was 97.1% (2018: 87.6%).
+ ADR (Average Dally Rate): the average dally rent {excluding VAT) achleved based on total accommeodation
Incoma divided by the total number of lodge nights sold. ADR for the period was £181.74 (2018: £184.95).
= RevPAL (Rent per avalable lodge night): the average dally rent {excluding VAT) achieved based on total
accommodation income divided by the toial svailable number of lodge nights. RevPAL for the period was
£166.08 (2018: £160.48).

The key performance indicatore compere the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 to the 53 weeks endad 26 Aprl 2018,

Golng concamn

The Directors have assessed the financial positions of the Group and the Company based upon the net current
iabliittes position at the end of the period. In assessing the going concem of the business they have considerad the
projected futurs trading and cash flows of the business. Using the evidencs avallable to them thay have concluded
that it s appropriate to present the financial statements on a going concem basis, as they consider that the Group will
continue as & going concam for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Directors and senior managers adopt a proactive approach to the managemsnt of potential risks and
uncertainties which could have a matarial Impact on the performance of the business and execution of s growth
sirategy, and are actively involved In the Group's Risk Committes. In addition to ongoing meonitoring, this Risk
Committes meets quartery to oversse risk managemeant arrangements and ensure appropriate processes are put in
place to mitigate potential risks and uncerteinties. The Flre, Heaith and Safely Steering Commitiee also meets bi-
monthly to oversse operational rieks.

There are s number of potential risks and uncertainties which coukd have a material Impact on the Group's
performancs and aexecution of its growth strategy. These risks include, but are not fimited to:

Operationel riak factors

Health and safely

The haalth, safety and welfare of the Group’s guests and emplcyses are central to e operstions. The Group is
committed to maintaining industry leading standards in health and sefsty including fire and food safety and adopts a
proactive approach to lis safety managament. Al Incidents are recordsd and reviswed fo monltor trends and capture
lsamning points that are then integrated into the business. The Fire, Health and Safety Steering Committes reviews
major inckients and is focused on continuous Improvement to mitigate the risk.

Business continulty

Ths Group operatss five hollday villagesa In the United Kingdom and a significant interruption of any one would have a
material impact on the Group. As a result, the Risk Commiitee supervises comprehansive risk management
armangements including business continulty plans which ars regulary tested with the support of extemal spacialista.
Thess amangements are supported by a broad Insurance programme.

Supply chain

The Group has & larga numbar of suppliers and prides Iteeif on the quailly of s

adverssly affected by a fall in the standard of goods or services supplied by third parties or by a faflure of a key
partner. Quallty riaks are mitigated via e robust supplier mglstration system with food and safety further supported by
independent advisors. In addition, the Risk Committes considers supply chain contingancy arangements and tekes
appropriate measures to mitigate this rlak.



Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Strategic report
For the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprll 2019 (continued)

Principa! riske and uncertainties {continued)

Contractual arangements

The Group has contracts with third parties for the supply of goods and services. Contracls are negotisted at arms’
length and the Group does not anter into contracts that are outside the ordinary course of busineas or those that
contain onerous terms. The Group adopis a compllance programme to ensure that It Is compllant with its material
contractual commitments. There ia no single contractual counterparty thet Ia critical to the running of the business.
ﬂﬂhn of any critical contractual counterparty ls managed through supply chain contingency arrangements {see
Su chain).

Employees

The Group's performance largely depends on s managers and staff, both on the villages and at head office. The
resignation of key Individuals or the inability to recnult steff with the right experience and skilis could adversely Impact
the Group's rasults. To mitigate these issues tha Group has investad in training programmes for its staff and has a
number of bonus schemes linked to the Group's results and achievement against key performance indicators linked
to guest safisfaction that are designed to reward and retain key Individuals.

Input price increases

The Group's margin can be adversely affectsd by an increase In the price of key costs to the business including, but
not limited to, wages, overhsade and utiites. The Group takes proactive steps o manage any such Increases
inciuding cost control, forward buying and budgeting for any increaes.

Brand

The Center Parcs brand could be adversaly affected by a serlous incident, accident or simllar cccurrence or just a
slow decline In the brand’'a appsal o consumers. The Group mitigates the risk of a serous incident, accident or
similar occurmrence by maintaining Industry-leading health and safety systems and standards of training. The risk of &
slow decline In the brand's appeal 18 managed through continuous product Innovation, marketing campaligns and
brand devsiopmaent.

Fraud

The Group operates five sitee across the United Kingdom. Risk of frmud exists In misappropriation of aseots,
Inciuding banking, theft of stock and theft of cash takings. The Group mitigates this risk through the management
structure and regular financial review with, and extensive use of, business gystems. In addition, the Group’s intemal
audit function undartakes regular reviews of financlal controls with particular focus on cash and stock transactions.
The Group s also subject to regular extomal audits.

Market riek faclors

Genaral Economic conditions

The disposabie income of the Group's guests and/or their holiday preferences are and will be affected by changee In
the geneml aconomic snvironment and this may resutt in a fall In the number of gusete and/or a decrease In on-site
expanditure. The Group regularly reviews its product offering and engages with guests to ensure It provides value for
money to meet guest needs.

Brexit

Following the result of the "Brexdt” Referendum on 23 June 2018, there remains a large degree of uncertainty
regarding what the lagal, aconomic, political and frading relationship wiil be between the United Kingdom and the
member staiss of the Europasan Union and other soversign siates. Untl the terms of “Brexit” have been finalised, # i
difficult for businesses to predict the Impact It wil have on them and their financial performance. Thus far, the
referendum result haa not had a material impact on the business of the Group.

Competition

The Center Parcs brand Is synonymous with high quaiity short breaks In a forest environment but the Group
competes for the discretionary expenditure of potential guests, who could choose fo take short breaks at other
destinations or perticipate In other recreaticnal activiies. The Directors belleve that thie risk is mitigated by the
strength of the Center Parca brand and the continual invesiment in the accommodation and central facilies
{including retall and restaurants), coupled with the mnovation amongst the leisure aciivities and the responsiveness
to guest surveys.
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Strategic report
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Seasonaily and weather

Demand for short breeks s Influenced by the main holiday periods at Easter, the Summer holidays and the
Christmas/New year period. Thie risk is mitigated by onkne dynamic pricing which encourages demand outside of
the peak periods. The accommodation is located within forest anvironments and & signlficant number of activitles
take place outdoors. Therefore, demand may be Impected by the prevailing weether. This risk Is minimal because
guesis tend nol to book on impulse and the vast majordty of breaks and activities are booked In advance.
Additionally, the Group maintains diversity betwean its Indoor and outdoor activiiles to mitigate this risk.

Financial dsks

The Directors and senior managers regularly review the financial requirements of the Group and the associated risics.
The Group does not use complicatad financial Instrumants and where financial instruments sre used they are used %©
reduce interest rate risk. The Group does not hold financial instruments for trading purposes. The Group finances its
operations and developments through a mixture of retained sarnings and borrowings as required. Historically, the
Group has sought to reduce its cost of capital by refinancing and restructuring the Group funding using the underlying
asset value.

All tranches of the Group's secured dabt are subject to financial covenants, The Directors have assessed future
compliance and at this ime do not foreses any breach of the financial covenants.

Interast rate risk
Principal sources of bormowings are fbad intorest rate loan notss.

Liquidity risk

The Group maintains sufficient levels of cash o enable it to meet Its medium-term working capital, leass llabliity and
funding obligations. Rolling forocasts of Uquidity requirements are prapered and monitorad, and surplus cash Is
invasted in Interest bearing accounts.

Currency risk

Whilst no borrowings are denominated In foreign curencies, a number of suppliers are axposed to the Euro and US
Dollar. Accordingly, wherever possible the Group enters into supply contracts denominated In Stering. The Group
does not operate a hedging Tacility to manage currency risk as it Is not considerad to be material.

Crodt risk
The Group's cash balances are held on deposit with a number of UK banking instiutions. Credit risk In respect of the
Group's revenue streams is imited as the vast majority of customers pay in advance.

Financial reporting risk

The Group's financial systems are required to process a large numbar of transactions securely and accurately; any
weaknessos In the systoms could reeult In the incotrect reporting of financial resulis and covenant compllance. This
risk is mitigated by the production of detalled management accounts which are regularty compered to budgets and
forecasts. The Group s also subjoct to an annual extsmal audkt.

On behalf of the board

21 June 2019



Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Directors’ report
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financlal statements for the 62 weeka snded 25 Aprll
2018 (2018: 53 weeks endoed 268 Aprll 2018),

The regisiration number of the Company s 07656429,
information about the use of financial instruments by the Group s provided in note 17 to the financiai statements,

Future developments
No changas to the nature of the business are anticipated.

On 27 July 2016, Centar Parcs ireland Limitad, a related party company, was granted full consent to conatruct a new
Center Parcs holiday vilage In the Republic of Ireland. This viilage Is expoctad to open t© the public in Summer
2019. Center Parcs {Hoidinge 1) Limited and Center Parcs Ireland Limiied have the same ulttimate parent company.

Dividends

During the perlod the Company paid dividends totaling £183.2 miilion (2018: £208.2 million). Of this total, the
Company disiributed £183.0 miflion of cash and £0.2 million of recelvables. The Diractors have proposed the
paymant of a final dividend of £20.1 milion (2018: finai dividends of £10.0 million and £25.8 milon).

Diractors
The Directors who sarved during the period and up to the date of this report were as follows:

M P Daby

C G McKinlay
Z B Vaughan
K © McCrain

N J Adomalt

During the period and at the date of approval of thess financlal statemerts, the Group had in place Direciors’ and
officers’ insurance.

Employses

The Group s committed to providing equal opportunities to all employess, Imespective of thelr gender, sexusl
orientation, marital siatus, race, nationallty, ethnic origin, disabiiity, age or religlon. Center Parcs is an inclusive
employer and valugs diversity among Its employess. These commitments extend to recrultment and selection,
training, career developmaent, flexdble working arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal.

Disabled

Appiications for smpioyment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concamed. In the avent of members of staff becoming disablod every effort is made to ensure that their
employment with the Group continues and that appropriate training is amanged. It Is the policy of the Group that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled parsons should, as far as possbia, be identical to that of
other smpioyees.

Empioyee consultation

The Group places conalderable value on the Involvement of Its employeas and has continued to keep them Informed
on maliers affacting thern as ampioyees and on the various factors affecting the performanca of the Group. This e
principally achieved through formal and informal briefings, the quarterly intermnal Group magsazine ‘Center Forward’
and annusl presantations of the financlal resutts by the CEQ. Employee repressntatives are consulted regularly on a
wide range of matters affecting thelr curment and future Interests, via village and head office councll meetings which
take place four times a year. In addition, all employees with more than six months' sarvice recelve an annual bonus
related to the overall profitabliity of the Group.

Political donations
ko political donations were mada In the current or prior period.



Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Directors’ report
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

Directors’ Responsibliities Statement
The Directors ara responsible for preparing the Stratsgic report, the Directors’ report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable lew and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for sach financial period. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in accondance with Intemnational
Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European:Union. Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statemants uniees thay are satisfled that they give a frue and fair view of the stats of affairs
of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. in preparing these financial
statements, the Direciors are required to:

salect sultable accounting policles and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

state whether applicable IFRS aa adopted by the European Unlon have baen followad; and

prepans the financial statemerits on the going concem basis uniess It ls inappropriate to presuma that the Group
and Company will continue it business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the
Group’s transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the Group and
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companios Act 2000. They are
aiso responsible for safequarding the aseets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other imeguiarities.

Tha Directors are responsible for the maintenance and Intagrity of the corporate and financiat information Included on
the Group’s websits. Legielation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation end dissemination of financial
statemants may differ from legislation In other jurisdictions.

Statement of disclosurs of information to the auditor
In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2008, In the casa of each Director In office at the date the
Directors' report Is approved, the following spplies:

a) oo far as the Diractor s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditor is
unaware; and

b) ha/she has taken ak the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in ordar o make him/hersetf
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor s aware of that information.

Independent auditor
Deloltte LLP are desmed to be reappointad under section 487 (2) of the Companies Act 2006.

By order of the board

M P Dalby
Director
21 June 2019



Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Raeport on the sudit of the financial statements

Opinlon

In our opinion:

« the financial stalements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 25 April 2019 and of the Group's profit for the 52 weeks then ended;

¢ the Group financial staternents have been propery prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;

¢ the Pament Company financial statements have besn properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
agggudndbymeEumpunumonanduapplbdhmMﬂ\hpmvlalonaofheCompaniuAnt
2006; a

. m;mamummmbmmmdhm“mmwmmucfmmmm
2008.

We have audited the financlal staterents of Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2010
which comprise the Group Income Statament, the Group Statement of Comprehensive income, the Group and
Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the Group and Parent
Company Statements of Changes kn Equity and the related notes 1 to 20. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied In their preparation ls applicable lew and Infernational Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Unlon and, as regarda the parent company financlal statements, as appliad In accordance
with tha provisiona of the Companies Act 2008.

Basls for opinion

Wae conducted our audtt In accordance with intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (18As (UK)) and applicable law.
Cur responalblities under those standards are further deacribed In the auditor's responsibiliiies for the audit of the
financial statemeants section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company In accordance
with the ethical requiremenis that are relevant to our audtt of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fullllisd our other ethical responsibiiities In accordance with these requirements. Wae
believe that the awdit evidence we have obtalned le sufficlent and appropriate to provide a beasls for our opinicn.

Conciusions relating to going concem
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
s the Directors’ use of the going concem baesis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements ia not
appropitate; or
« the Directors have not disclosed In the financlal statements any kientifled material unceriainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s or Parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concemn
basis of accounting for a period of at ieast 12 months from the date when the financlal staternents are
authorised for [ssue.

We have nothing to report in respect of thase matters.

Othet Information

The Directors are responsible far the other Information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other Information and, except %o the extent otherwise explicily stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance concluelon thereon.

In connection with our audlt of the financial statements, our responsibliity Is to read the cther information and. In
doing =m0, consider whether the other Information is matarially inconsistent with the financlal statements or our
knowledge cbiained In the audit or otherwise eppears to be materdally misstated, If we identify such matsrial
inconsistencles or apparent material misstatemanis, we are required to determine whether there Is a material
misstatement In the financial statements or a material misstatoment of the other information. If, based on the work
wo have performed, we conclude that there is a meterial misstatement of this othet Information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.




Center. Parcs (Hoidings 1) Limited

Independent auditor's report to the members of
Center Parcs (HoldIngs 1) Limited (continued)

Reaponsibliities of Directors
As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsiblities Steiement, the Directors are responsible for the praparation
of the financia! statements and for being satisfled that they give a trus and fair view, and for such internal conirol as

the Diractors determine is necessary to enable the preparstion of financial statements that are free from material
misatgtement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Direciors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Company's abfity to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and
using the going concem basls of accounting uniess the Directors efther Intand to Hquidats the Group or the Parent
Company or to coase oparations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibiiitiea for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable sssurance about whether the financlal etatements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eimor, and to Issus an auditor's report that inciudea our opinion.
Reasonable assurance Is a high level bf assurance, but |s not a guarsntee that an audlt conducted in accordance
with |SAs (LK) will always detect a material misstatement when R exists. Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error

and are considered materal If, Individually or In the aggregate, they could msonabfy be expected to Influence the
economic decislons of users uknn on the basis of these financlal statements

A further deacription of our responsiblities for the audit of the financlal statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: ui/aud sibilities. This descripton forms part of our auditors
report,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in cur opinfon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
e the Information given In the Strateglc report and the Directors’ report for the financial period for which the
financial statements are prepared is conaistant with the financial ataternants; and

» the Strategic report and the Directors' repert have besn prepamsd in accordance with appllllblo legal
requiremants. .

In the light of the knowlfedge and understanding of the Group and of the Parent Company and thelr environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any matsrial misstataments In the Strategic report or the
Diractors’ report.

Matiers on which we are required to report by sxception
Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required to raport In respect of the following matters i, In our opinion:
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retume adequate for our audit
havs not been received from branches not visited by us; or
» the Parent Company financial statemants are not In agreement with the accounting recorts and retums; or
s cerzln disciosures of Directors' remunsration specifisd by law are not made; or
= wa have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

* Wa have nothing to repori in respect of these matters.

Uss of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been underiaken so thal we might state to the Company’s members those
metiers we are required to state to them In an gudiior's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest sxtent
parmiited by law, we do not accept or assume responsibliity to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members a8 a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Al stoir FRGdarel A

Alistair Pritchard FCA {Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behaelf of Daloltte LLP

Statutory Audttor

Nottingham, UK

21 June 2019
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Group Income Statement
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019

352 weeks ended 28 April 2019 53 weeks ended 28 Aprll 2018
Before Before
exceptionsl Exceptional exceptional  Excaptional
and non- and non- and non- and non-
underlying undertying underlying  undertying
Hems Homs Total ftems ltems Total
Nate £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 A802 - 4902 a0 - 59,0
Cost of salee (129.1) - {120.1) (123.7) - (123.7)
_Gross profit . 351.1 - 3511 34583 - 348.3
Adminisirative sxpenses {118.5) . {(118.8) {1166y 23 (110.2]
Adjusted EBITDA 3 2326 - 2328 2284 23 2281
{ Decreclation and amor#isation (B7.7) = {sn (62.7) - {52.7)
Total opetating 8<penses (178.2) - (176.2) (166.8) {2.3) {171.9)
Oporating profit 3 740 - 174.9 787 (23) 1734
Finance incomea 8 0.2 - 0.2 0.3 - 0.3
Finance exponse 8 (9 o7 (Ges) (@85 (@88 (1164
Profit before taxaiion 8.2 [L4g] ki BTE T @3 0 s
Taxation 7 (158.2) 1.5 {13.1) (14.0 7.2 (6.8
Profit for the period
attributsble to equity 20 89.0 (8.2) 628 73.8 (22.0) 81.5
sharsholders
All amounts relals to continuing activities,
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019
2018 2018
Nota £m £m
__Proftt for the perfod o 828 51.6
Other comprshensive Income:
Items that will not be recisssifiad Lo profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment bensftt obligations 25 {0.8) 7
Tax ralating to components of other comprehensiveincome 18 04 o3
Other comprehensive Income fortheperied . B O (T T . |
Total comprehensive incoms for the perod 823  E249

Tha notes on pages 14 to 40 form part of these financial statements
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Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

AP o 22 AP SO S PR

Balance Sheets
Group Company
{restated)
As st 28 As sl 28 As gt 25 Anat 26
April 201 Aprll 2018 | Aprfl 2019  April 2018
Assets o
Non-current assets
Goodwill 8 1675 16575 - -
Other Intangible assets 8 1488 148.7 . -
Property, plant and equipment 10 1480.0 1,470.8 . -
Right-of-use assels 1" 306 - - -
investments in subsidiary undertakings 12 . - 488.9 488.9
Deferred tax asset o 18 0.2 08| - .
8167 1,171.8 4080 486.9
Current ssssts
Inventories 38 X - -
Trade and other receivables 13 0.8 9.8 . 223.4
Current {ax asset - 37 - -
Cashandcashequivalents - o 00.2 46.1 - ) -
TAD 834 - 2234
Usbilities
Current llabllities
Borrawings 15 {0.3) (0.3 . -
Current tax Nabiity 1) - - "
_Trade and other payables . L4 (190.3) {188.0) (110.9} (587.6)
. . - * (190.7y  (1883)  (110.9)  (587.8
_Net current Hablities o . {118.7) (124.8§ (110.9) (364.2)
Non-current Rabliiities
Bormowings 15 {1.879.3) {1,748.1 . .
Laase liabliities 16 {23.8) - - -
Retirement benefit abligations 25 (1.3) (1.2 - -
Deferred taxllatify , 18 197.3) {92.0) . -
- e (2,011.8) (1.841.3] - c
{311.5) (1684] 3se.0 1027
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Equity share capital 19 1.0 1.0 10 1.0
Share premium 20 - - . -
Other resarve 20 (154.0) (154.0) . -
Retalned eamings . . = (186.5) (384f  2385.0 101.7
Total equity (311.8) {188.4) 356.0 102.7

Tha Company has slected ic take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 not to present the
parent company incoms statemant. Tha profit for tha pament company for the period was £438.5 million (2018: profit
of £44.7 million). The financial statements on pages 10 o 48 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June
2019 and were signed on Ite behalf by:

Director

Canter Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited
Reglslered no. 07656429

The notes on pagee 14 to 48 form part of these

"



Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Cash Flow Statements

Group Company
52 weeks wooks | 52weeks 53 weeks
onded 28 ended 28 | ended 25 ended 26
Aprll 2019  Aprdl 2018 | Aprll 2019  Aprill 2018
) ] o Note £m £m &m £m
Cash flows from cperating activities
Operating profit 1149 173.4 - -
Deapraciation and emortisation 4 81.7 v - -
Working capital and non-cash movemants 1 71 125 - -
Differenca batween the pension charge and contributions (c.5) (0.3 - -
_ Corporation tex paki and payments for grown relief 7 (14.0) (1.0} - .
Net cash from operating activities 228.2 _2371.3] . -
Cash flows (used In)ifrom Investing activities
Purchasa of property, pient and equipment (59.5) {(7A7 - -
Purchesaa cf Intangfble assots (6.8) {(11.3 - -
Sals of property, plant and equipment 0.1 0.2 - -
Interest recaived 0.2 0.3 - -
Dividends received N - - 138.0 -
_ Net cash (used Injffrom Investing activities (88.0) {85.59 138.0 -
Cash flows ussd In financing activities
Repayment of external borrowings (350.2) (560.3) - -
Proceeds from extemal borrowings 4827 839.5 | - .
lssus costs on securad debt (4.8) (8.3) - -
Break costs on secured debt (e.1) (26.9) - -
Intereet paid (83.7) (84.5) - -
Dividends paid 20 {183.0) (208.2y {183.0) -
Settlement of Iniregroup loans 26 - g 45.0 -
Net cash used in ﬂnmclgg activities (14B.1) (13 (1380 -
Net increasa In cash and cash equivalents 14.1 12.1 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the poriod 48.1 34.0 - -
Cash and cash equivalents st end of the periad 80.2 48.1 - -
Reconclliation of net cash flow to movement In net debt
Increass In cash snd cash squivelents 14.1 121 -
Cash Inflow from movement In debt o s 2792 - -
Changs In net debt resulting from cash fiowa 188 {7y -7 z
Non-cash movements and doforred [ssuecosts 1.3 5.8 - -
Movement In net debt in the period {117.1) (261.9] . -
~ Net debt at beginning of the period (1,702.3) (1.441.0 -
Net debt at end of the period 22 (185194) {1,702.3) -

Net debt represents borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The notes on pagea 14 to 48 form part of these financial statemants.
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Centter Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Staternents of Changes In Equlity

8hare Share Other  Retained Totsl
capital premium reserve samings equity
At 26 Apdll 2018 10 (154.0) (35.4) (188.4)
Impact of change in accounting policy ~ IFRS 18 . - (2.2 (2.2)
_Adjusted balances st 26 Aprk 2018 ) 1.0 (154.0; 316 1190.6)
Comprshensive Income ’
Proft for the period - - - 628 82.8
Other comprahensive income - - - (0.8} {0.5)
Transactions with owners
Diviiencs o - e - (183.2) 163.2)
At 28 Aptll 2010 o _1a - {1840 {158.5) 1.5
Share Share Other  Retained Total
capltal  premium reserve  saminga oquity
Al 20 Aprfl 2017 1. 74.3 {154.0) 1364 57,7
Impact of change in polcy—IFRE 18 - - - 08 (0.8}
Adjustnd belances st 20 April 2017 10 743  (154.0) 1358 - 56.9°
Proftt for the peod - - - 51.5 5.6
Other comprshensive Income - - - 1.4 14
Transactions with ownere
Bonus Issue of shares - 133.9 - (133.0) -
Capital reduction - (208.2) - 208.2 -
Dividends o - . - (208.2) (288.2)
At 28 April 2018 10 . {184.0) _ {34 {188.4)
Share Share Other  Rstained Total
capital premium ressrve saminge squity
¥ fm £m £m £m £m
At 26 April 2018 1.0 - - 101.7 102.7
Comprehensive inooms
Proftt for the period - - 436.5 4368.5
Transactions with owners
_Dividonds N - - - {183.2) __{183.2)
At 25 April 2019 1.0 - - 358.0 350.0
Share Share Other Ratained Total
capiial  premium reeerve  emrmninge squity
At 20 April 2017 1.0 743 1264 154.8 356.2
Comprehensive incoms
Proftt for the period - - - 4.7 4.7
Transactions with owners
Bonus lasue of shares - 1339 (126.1) (7.8 -
Capital reduction - {208.2) - 2082 -
Dividends - - - {288.2 (208.2)
At 26 April 2018 1.0 - . 104.7 1027

The notaa on pages 14 to 48 form part of these financlal statements.
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Center Parcs {(Holdings 1) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the 62 weeks ended 25 April 2018

1. Accounting policies

Gensral information

The Company is a privats company limited by shares, which Is Incorporated and domiclled in tha UK, and is
reglstered In England and Wales. The addreas of is registered office s One Ediscn Rise, New Ollerton, Newark,
Nottinghamshire, NG22 BDP,

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financlal statements for the 52 weeka ended 26 April 2019 (2018: 53 weeks ended 26 April 2018)
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and Intemational Financlal Reporting Interpretations Committee
{IFRIC) and Standing Intarpratations Commiites (SIC) Interpretations adopted by the European Union and with thoea
parts of the Companles Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaksation of derivative financial instuments and
retirement benefit obligations. All accounting policles disclosed have been applied consistently to both periods
presented, with the exception of those relating to financial Instruments, revenue and lease accounting following the
adoption of IFRS 9 ‘Financlal instruments’, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
in the period ended 26 April 2019,

The accounting reference dats of Center Parcs (Hoidings 1) Limitad Is 22 April,

General impact of the applcation of IFRS § 'Financial instruments’

The adoption of IFRS 8 ‘Financial Instruments’, replacing IAS 39 'Flnancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement', has not had a material impact on the Group's financial statements. Thers have besn no changes to
the assats and liabllies considarad to be financlal instruments, aithough IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments’ does amend
the categorisation of financlal assets and liabiities. This change has been reflected in both the financial Instruments
accouniing policy and the disclosures in note 17,

IFRS 9 'Finandcial Instruments’ Introduces an expactad cradit loss mods! which requires the Group to conslder the
recoverabllily of lts financial assets and to recognise any anticipated losses as an Impalment. in respect of trade
recelvables, credit risk is imited as the vast majority of customers pay in advance. Credit risk is also considered to
be low In respect of the Group’s cash and cash aquivalents, given the credit ratings of the counterparties. As such,
no axpected credi losses have been recognised following the adoption of IFRS 8 ‘Financlal Instruments’.

IFRS £ ‘Financial Instruments’ also introduces new requirements for hadge accounting but these are not curmently
relevant to the Group.

Additionally, the Group has adopted conseguential amendments to |AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' thet have been
applied to the cument and prior period.

General impact of the application of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The sdoption of IFRS 156 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, repiacing IAS 16 ‘Revenue’, has not had a
material impact on tha Group’s financial staijerments. The Group has adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ using the retrospective method (without practical expedients) and as such has recognised the cumulative
effect of applying the new standard at the start of the sarliest period presented. The effact of the adoption of IFRS 15
'Revenus from Contracts with Customers’ as at 20 April 2017 was the deferral of £0.8m of revenue In respect of
certaln promotional activitias. As such, £0.8m was racognised as a lability at the transition date with a corresponding
reduction to retained eamings. The timing of the recognition of all other revenue Is unchanged.
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Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited .

Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

General impact of the application of IFRS 10 ‘Leases’
In the current period, the Group, for the first time, has applied IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (as issued by the (ASB in January
2016) in advance of its effective date.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. it introduces significant
changes to lessee accounting by removing the distinction betwean operating and finance leases and requirting the
recognition of a right-of-use sesst and a leaso liablity at the lease commeancement date for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets,

The Group has applied IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparstive
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 ‘Leases’. The details of accounting
under IAS 17 ‘Leases’ are disclosad separately and the Impact of the changes ie disciosed in note 2.

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expediant avaiabis on transition to IFRS 18 'Leasas’ not to reasseas
whether a contract is or coniains & lsase. Accordingly, the definition of a lease In accordance with IAS 17 "Leases’
and IFRIC 4 'Determining Whether An Agresment Contains a Lasass’ will continue to be applied to isases entered Into
or modified before 27 April 2018.

The change in deflnition of a leasa principally relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 ‘Leasss’ determines whather
a contract contains a lsase on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified assast
for a period of time In exchange for consideration.

Tha Group applies the definiion of a leass and related related guidance set out in IFRS 18 'Leases’ 10 all lense
contracts entered into or modified on or efter 27 Aprll 2018. In preparation for the first-time adoption of IFRS 18
‘Leases’ the Group carried out an Implementation project which showed that the new definttion In IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
wili not significantly change the scope of contracts that meet the definition of a leass for the Group.

Impact on Lesses Accounting
IFRS 16 'Leases’ changes how the Group accounts for laases previously claasified gs operating leases under IAS 17
‘Leseas’, which were off-balance sheel. Applying IFRS 18 ‘Leases’ the Group:
8) Racognises right-of-use asssts and lease Lablities In the consolkiated balance sheet, inltially measured at
the present value of future lease payments;
b) Recognises depreciation of right-to-use assote and interast on leass Habillies in the consolidated Income
staternent; and
c} Separates the total amount of cash pakd into a principal pottion and intersat In the consolidatad cash flow
staternant (both presented within financing activities).

Under IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, right-cf-uss assois are tested for impaiment In accordance with IAS38 'Impairment of
Assets’. This replaces the previous requirement to recognise a provielon for onerous lease contracts, For short-term
laases (leass torms of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value asests, the Group has opted 10 recognise 6 lsaee
axpense on a stralght-ine basis as parmitted by IFRS 16 ‘Leases’.
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Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

A A AR Aol et

Notes to the financial statements
for the 62 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Golng concern

The Directors have asseased the financial positions of the Group and the Company In light of the net currant liabilities
positions at the end of the period. In zssessing the going concem of the business they have considered the
projected future trading and cash flows of the business. Using the evidence avaliable to them they have concluded
that It Is approprdate to pressnt the financial etatements on a going concem basis, as they conalder that the Group will
continue as a going concem for a period of at leaat 12 months from the date of signing the financlal statements.

Basls of consolidstion

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited (the
Company’) and entities controlled by the Company. A company controls another entity when It ls exposed, or has
rights, to variable retums from ita involvement with that antity and has the ablllty to effect those retums through its
power over that entity.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of CPUK Finance Limited, a company sst up with the
sole purpose of lssuing debt sacured on asasts ownad by the Group. The Dirsctors of Center Parcs (Holdings 1)
Limited conelder this company meets the definition of a structured entity under IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial
statesments’ and hence for the purpose of the consolidated financial siatements it has been treatad as a subsidiary
underiaking. Datalls of this company are provided in note 28.

‘The financial statements of subeidiary undertakings are prepared for the same financlal reporting perod as the
Company.

The consolidated financlal statements of Centsr Parcs (Hokiings 1) Limited have been prapared under the principles
of pradeceasor accounting and all entities are Iincluded at thelr pre-combination canmying amounts. This accounting
treatment resulis In diffsrences on consolidation between consideration and the fair value of underlying net assats
and this difference s includad within equity as an cther reserve.

On 11 June 2015 the Group acquired CP Wobum (Operating Company) Limited; prior to that date both the Group
and CP Wobum (Operating Company) Limited were under the common control of the parent company CP Cayman
Midco 1 Limited. The acquisition formed part of a group reconstruction and hae been accounted for using marger
accounting principies which present the financial siatements as If CP Wobum (Operating Compeny) Limited had
always been part of the Group using the pre-comblination carying values.

Under merger accounting principles, the assets and labliittes of CP Wobum (Operating Company) Limied have besn
consolidated based on thelr pre-combination book values and the differencs between the consideration payable and
the baok values of the nat assets ls recorded in equity In the other reserve.
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Center Parcs (Hld!ngs1) Limed |

Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting jJudgements and key sources of sstimation uncertainty

The preparation of financlal statements requires the Directors tc make estimates and essumptions that affect the
application of policles and reported amounts. Estimates and judgaments are continually evalueted and are basad on
historical sxperience and other factors inciuding expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonabile
under the circumstances. Actual resuls may differ from thess setimates.

Discount rate used to determine the canrying value of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme obligation:

The Group's defined benefti pension scheme cbligation is diacounted st a rate set by refersnce to market ylelds at
the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. Significant judgment ls required when selting the
criteria for bonds to be included In the population from which the yield curve I derived.

Useful econamic ives and residusl vaiues of proparty, plant and equipment and other intangible aasats:

The Group reviews the eslimated useful Hves of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets at the end
of each reporting period. During the current period, the Directors have concludad that no revision is required to efther
useful economic fives or reskival values of these assols.

Impairment teat for goodwill:

Determining whether goodwil! Is impaired requires an estimation of the value In use of the cash-generating unite o
which goodwill has besn allocatad. The value in use calculation requires the Group o estimate future cash flows
expacted fo arlse from the cash-genersting unit and a sultable discount rate in order to calculete present value.

Determination of the appropriats rate to discount leass payments:

Whers discount rates implicht in [sases cannot be readily determined, the Group is required to ceiculate appropriate
incremental borrowing ratee In order to establieh the vaises of leass Habilities and assoclated right-cf-use aseets.
This process incorporates &8 number of sstimates and assumptions, inchuding property yields and borrowing rates.

Revenus

Revenue relates o accommedation rental income on holidays commenced during the period, together with other
related incormne that primarily arises from on-village lelsure, retall and food arwd beverage spend. Revenue releling to
accommodation s recognisad on e straighi-ine basis over the pedod of the holiday. The performance obligation for
non-rental Incoma, and hence the basis for revenue recognition, is when the related product or service Is providad to
the guest. Al revenue s recordad net of VAT,

Payment for accommodation rental income s received in advance of holidays commencing, and Is recorded as
‘deferred income' within Trade and other payables untii the holiday commences. A number of trading units on sach
holiday villaga are operated by concaselon partners. Revenue due In respect of such uniis is recognised on an
accruals basis. All revenue arises In the United Kingdom.

For disaggregation purposss, revenue as presanted In note 3 Is spiit between accommodation and on-site spand.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales compries the cost of gonds and services provided to guests. All costs to the point of sale, including
direct smployee costs, are inciuded within cost of sales.

Operating sagmants
The operating segments set out In nots 3 to the consolidated financial stalements are consistent with the intemal

reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker, as defined by IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’. The Chief
Operating Dacleion Maker has been identffied as the Board of Diractors.

Exceptional/non-underiying itsms

Exceptional/non-underlying items are defined as those that, by virtue of their nature, size or expected frequency,
warrant separate disclosure in the financial statements In order to fully understand the underlying performance of the
Group. Nen-undaerlying tems are thosa that are not directly related to the ongoing trade of the business or that are
unrepresentative of ongoing performance. Examples of exceptional/nonimderlying tems are the coets of Group
restructures, expensas Incurred when refinancing debt and movements In the fair value of embedded derivatives.
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Center Parcs (Hoidings 1) Limited
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 wasks ended 28 April 2019 (continuad)

1. Accounting policles (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitelised and represents the excess of the falr value of the consideration given
over the falr valua of the identifiable net assets and liabilitles acquired. Goodwill Is not amortisad but is instead tested
for impainment on an annuel basle, or more frequently if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the camying
value may be Impaired. Any Impalrment Is recogniged immaediatsly in the Income statement. Goodwill Is allocatsed to
cash-ganerating units for the purpose of impaiment testing.

Other intangible assets
Software

Acquirad computer software licences are capitalised on the basia of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These cosis are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are
genarally considerad to be elther four or seven yaars.

Costs that are directly associated with tha production of identtfiable and unique scfiware products controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate aconomic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognissd aa
intangible assets. Direct cosis include the software development employes costs and an appropriaie porton of
relevant overheads. Computer software development costs recognised as assate are amortisad over thelr estimated
usedul lives.

Other intengible assels

Other purchasad Intangible assets are caplialised at cost, amortised on a siraightine basis over their useful
economic ives end tested for Impalment annually. The brand I8 not amortised as It is considered fo have an
Indefinite Ie; the camrying valus of the brand Is subject to an annual Impairment review.

impairment of assets

Assoln that have ah Indefinite useful Kfe are not subjact fo amortisation and are tested annually for Impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impalrmant whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying emount may not be recoverable. An impairment loas I8 recognised for the amount by which
the asset's canrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
valus less costs to sall and value-In-use. For tha purposes of assessing impairment, assats are groupsad at the
lowest lavels for which thore are separately identiflable cash fiows (cash-generating units).

Property, plant and squipment

The Directors chose the coat basis under IAS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’, rather than to apply the altemative
(revaluation) treatment to all items of property, plant and equipment as lts ongoing accounting policy. The cost of
property, plant and equipment includes directly atiributable costs. The Group elecisd 1o apply the optional axemption
of IFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards’ &nd, as such, the canying value of
propertisa that were previously held at fair valua was treated as deemed cost at the date of adoption of IFRS.

Depreciation ks provided on the cost of all property, piant and equipment (except assets In the course of construction)
so as to write off the coat, lees residual value, on a straight-line basls over the expected usaful economic kfe of the
assete concerned, which are typically as follows:

Installations 10 to 20 years
Fixtures and fitlings $to 10 years
Motor vehiclea 4 yaars
Computer hardware 4 years

Bulidings are depreciated to residual value over 50 years. Land la not depreciated. The Group's water borsholes are
depreciated on a stralght-ine besls over 13 years.

Usoful fives and roskiual values are reviswed at sach balance shest date and revised where expaciations are
significantly different from previous estimates. In such cases, the depreciation charge for current and future perlods
is adjusted accordingly.

Bormowing costs directly attributable to the acquisiion, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarlly take a substential period of time to get reedy for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assots aro aubstentially ready for thelr intended use or sala. All other
borrowing costa are rocognised in the income statement In the year In which they are Incurmad.

18



Centter Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2016 {continued)

1. Accounting poiicies (continued)

Maintensnce sxpenditure

it s the pollcy of the Group to maintain its land and buildings to a high standard. Where maintenance expenditure
ncreasses the banefits that property, plam and aquiprment s expected to generats, this expenditure is capitaiisad. Afl
other maintenanca costs are charged to the iIncome statement as iIncurmed.

Laasas

Palicy appicabie from 27 April 2018

The Group aseesess whether a contract le or contains a leass at Inception of a contract, The Group recognises
right-of-use aseét and a corresponding leass Habliity with respact to all lease agreemants in which It is the lessee,
except for short-lerm leases (defined as leases with a lsase term of 12 months or less) and leases of low vaiue
assets. For these leases, ths Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-ine basls
over the term of the leass uniess another systemstic basis 's more represantative of the ime pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease Habilty Is initlally measured at the present velue of the lease payments that are not pald at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the leass. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group calculates an appropriate Incremental borrowing rate,

Laase payments inciuded In the measuremaent of the lsass llablilty comprise:

¢ Fixed lsase payments (inchuding In-substance fixed payments), lees any lsase incentives;

#» Variable lease payments that depend on an indax or rate, initialy measured using the Index or rate ot the
commencement date;

s The amount expaecied {o ba payable by the lesses under residual value guaranines;

» The exercise price of purchass opifons, if the lessea Is reasonably certain %o exarcise the options; and

« Payments of penailies for terminating the leass, If the Isame term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

Leass labliites are subsequently measurad by increasing the carrying amount o refiect interest on the lease
flabiilties {using the eflective Intarast rate method) and by reducing the carrying amount to refiact the lease payments
made. The Group remeasures the lease Rabllitiss (and makes a cormesponding adiustiment to the relsted right-of-use
assats) whanever:

¢ Tha lease term has changed or there Is a change in the assessment of exercles of & purchase option, in
which case the lease kabllity s remeasured by discounting the revised lsass payments using a revised
discount rate.

» The lsase payments change due ta changes in an Index or rate or a change in expectad payment under a
guaranteed residual velue, in which cases the leass lability ks remeasured by discounting the revised leaae
payments using the Initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
Interesat rats, in which case a revised discount rate Is usad).

+ A lease contract le modified and the lease modification Is not accounted for as a separate lease, In which
case the leasa lablity Is remeasured by discourting the ravised iease payments using a revised discount
rate.

The right-of-use assets comprise the Intial measurement of the cormesponding lsase liability, loase payments made
at or before the commencement date and any Initial direct coste. They are subsequently measured at cost loss
accumulatad depreciation and Impairment lossas.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased aseet, restore the site on which
it Is located or restors the underlying asset to the condiion required by the terms and conditions of the leese, a
provision Is recognised and measurad under [AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingsnt Assats’. The
cosis are Inciuded in the relatad right-of-uss asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lsase term and useful iHe of the underlying aseet. ifa
ioase transfors ownarship of the underlying aseet or the coet of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects
1o exarcisa a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful Rfe of the underlying asset.
The depracation starte at the commencement date of the lease.

Variable rents that do not depend on an Index or rate are not Included In the measurement of the lease llability and
the right-of-use assst. Tho related payments are recognised as an administrefive expense In the conaclidated
income statament in the period in which the event or condition thet triggers thoss payments occurs.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Lesases (continuad)

Policy appRicable prior to 27 April 2018

Leasos wero ciassifisd as finance leases if the terma of the lease transfarmed substantally all tha risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessse. All cther laases were classified as operating leases.

Assets heki under financa leasas ware capitafisad at cost and depreciated over their ussful livas. The caplts)
elemeant of future rentels was treatad as a kabilty and the interest element was changed to the incoma staternant over
tha period of the lease in proportion to the capital outstanding.

Rental payments on oparating leasea (nat of any Incentives racelved from the lessor and Inciuding minimum
contractual rental Increeses) were charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-ine basis.

Investments in subsidlary undertakings

Investments are stated at cost, iess any provision for parmanent diminution in value. If thers are indications of
Impalment, an assassment Is made of the recoverabls amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the Income
statement when the recoverable amount Is lower than the camying value. Dividends recelvable from investments in
wMawgmmamWinmtmmmmwbylhedurel'nldmofhoompmy
paying the dividend.

Current and deferred tax
The current tax charge Is caiculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balanca
sheet date and Is measurad at the amount axpected to be pakd to or recovered from the tax authorities.

Daferred tax Is provided in full, using the liabliity method, on all differences that have originated but not reversed by
the balance sheet date which give risa o an obligation to pay more or less tax In the future. Differences are defined
as the differences betwsen the carrying value of assets and liabiliies and thair tax base. Such assats and llablities
are not mscognised If the temporery difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the Initial
racognition (other than in a business combination) of other aasets and Kabiltties In a transaction thet affects nelther
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax on properies assumes recovery through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It is probabie that future taxable profits wiil be avallable agalnst
which the assets can be utiisad. Deferred tax is calculated using tox rates that are expected 1o apply when the
related deferred tax asect Is reallsed or the deferred tax liabiitty Is sattied, on the baasls of the tax laws enacted or
aubstantively enactad at the balanca sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and Rabliiles are only offsst when there is a legally enforceable right to offset curment tax assais
and current tax liabliities and when the deferred Income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority and there is an
intention to satfle on a net basls.

inventories

The basls of valuation of inventories is the lower of coet on a first in first out basie and estimated net reefisable value.
Net realisable value is the setimated seliing price In the ordinary course of business less appicabie variable selling
expsnses. Inventory provisions are croated where necesaary to ensure that inventory Is valued at the lower of cost
and estimated net realisable value.

finencisl Instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets into two categories, being those measured at amortised cost and those
measured at fair value. Whare sseefs are measured at faeir value gains and lossas are recognised elther in the
income statement or In other comprehensive Income, depending on the nature of the assst. Financlal assets are
included in current asseis, axcept for matrities greater than 12 months aftar the balance sheet date which are
classifled as non-current assets

Financial liabilties are claseiffed aa sither fair value through profit and loss or other financial Babliies. The
ciassification depends on the nature of the financial Instrument acquired. Management determines the classification
of its finenclal instruments at initlal recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date. Other
financial llablities are camed at amortised cost using the effactive interest rate method.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2019 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

invesitments

The cost of investments, Including loans 1o related parties, ls their purchase cost togsether with any incremental costs
of mcquistion, The Group assesses at each balance shest date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets ls impaired. In deciding whether an impaiment is required, the Directors consider
the underlying value inherent In the investment. Provision is made against the cost of invesiments where, In the
opinion of the Directors, there s an impaiment in the value of the individual investment.

Trade recetvables
Trade recelvables are recognised Inltialy at fair value and subsequently at amortsed cost. A provision for
impairment of trade receivebles is made when there is objective evidence that the Group wil not be able to collect all
amounts dus according to the original termea of the receivables. The amount of the provision Is recognieed In the
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement and the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and cash In hand.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inliially at fair vaiue, net of transaction costs incummed. Bommowings are subsequantiy
stated at amortised cost; any difference betwesn the proceeds (net of transaction coets) and the redemption vaiue is
recognised in the Income statement over the period of the bommowings using the effective Interest method.
Borrowings are clasalfied as cument liabllitles unless the Groeup has an uncondltions! right to defer setiement of the
llabllity for at least 12 months after the balance shast date.

Borrowing costs
interest on borrowings fs treated as an expanse in the Income staterment, with the exception of Interest costs Incurred
on the financing of major projects, which are capitaiised within property, plant and equipment.

Early tarmination costs
Costs asaociated with the early repayment of borrowings are written off to the Income statement as Incurred.

Darlvative financial Instruments

The Group dosa not trade In derivative financial Instruments. Derivative financial Instruments have historically been
used by the Group fo manage Hs exposure to Interest rates on long-term floating-rate borrowings. All darivative
financlal instruments are measured at tha balance sheat dete at their falr value. The Group does not currently hedge
account for eny derivatives. As such, any gain or ioss on remeasurement fe taken to the income etatement.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embadded In other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and characteristice are not closely relatad to those of the host confracts and the host cantracts are not
maasured at fair value through profit and loss.

Trade payables

Trade payables are cbligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired In the ordinary course of
business from suppllers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabllities if payment is due within cne year or
lass. If not, they are presented as non-current liabliities. Trads payables are recognised Inftiaily et fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.

Provislons

Provisions for legal claims are racognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive ohfigation as a result of
past avents, It is more Ukely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to setiie the obligation, and the
emount has been rellably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a
number of aimiiar obiigations, the likelihood that an outfliow will be required In settlernent ls determined bry conskiering
the class of obligations as a whois. A provision Is recognised even If the Ikelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one ltemn Inciuded In the same class of obiigations Is small.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 28 Aprii 2018 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to the Company's sharsholders are recognised as a Babllity in the Company's financial
statemants In the period in which the dividends are epproved by the Company’s sharsholders. Interim dividends are
recognised when pakl.

Forelgt currencles

assets and liebilties denominatad In foreign currencies ars transiated Into sterling et the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. The reeulting profit or loss, togethsr with nealised profits and iosses arising during
the period on the seitiement of overseas assets and liabllitites, are included In the tading results. Transactions
denominated In foreign currencles are transieied into sterfing 2t the rate of axchange ruling at the date of the
{ransaction.

Empioyss benefits
Pensions

- Definad contribution pension scheme

Group empioyees can choose to be a member of a defined contribution pension scheme. A defined contribution
pension scheme Is a peneion scheme undar which the Group pays fixad conirbutions Into a separate entity. The
Group has no iegal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hok! sufficient assets to
pay all emplaysas tha benefits relating tv employee service In the current and prior paroda. Contributions are
charged to the income statement as incurred.

- Definad banefit pansion scheme

A funded sanior management defined benefit pension scheme also exists. A defined benefit pansion scheme is a
pension plan that dafines the amount of pension benefit that an employse will recaive on retirement, usually
dependsnt on one or more factors such as age, ysars of servics and compensation.

The surplus or lablilty recognised in the balance sheet In respect of the defined banefit pension scheme Is the
presant valus of the definad bensfit obligation at the balance sheet daie less the fair value of pian asaets, iogether
with adjustmants for unrscognisad actuarlal gaina or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obiigation is
calculated annuelly by independent aciusries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefi obligation Is determined by dlscounting the estimated future cash outfiows using intersst rates for
high-quality corporate bonds, which have terma to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension lablily.
Past-service cosis ane recognised Immediately In the Income statement. Remeasurement gaing and losses are
recognised In other comprehensive income.

Profit-sharing end bonusg plans

The Group recoghises g liablity and an expensa for banuses and profit-shering, based on 8 formula that tekes into
consideration the proftt attributabia to the Company's sharshoiders aftsr certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive cbligation.

Hoiidgy pay
The Group recognises an appropriate liablity for the cast of holiday entitiements not taken at the balance sheet date.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as squily. Incrementsl costs directly atirbutable to the lssue of new shares or options
are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

Qther reserve

The cther resarve in the consolidated financial statesments represents the differences on consolidation arsing on the
adoption of predecessor accounting. This comprizses the differance between consideration paki and the book velue
of net asaets acquired in the transaction, The other reserve in the Company financial statements represents the
appiication of group reconetruction relief in accordance with section 612 of the Companies Act 2008, foliowing the
acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior pariods from fellow group companies.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2018 {continuad)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

New standards and interpretations

A number of new or revised accounting standards were eflectivo for the first ime in the curment pericd. Other than
the adoption of IFRS 16 'L.sases’, none of these have significantly impacted the financial staterments of the Group or
Company and are unikely to have a material impact in the future.

The Intermnational Accounting Standards Board (LASB) hes issued the following new or revised standards and
interpretations with an effaciive date for financial periods beginning on or afler the dates disclosed below and
therafore after the date of these financial statoments. The [ASB has aiso issuad a number of minor amendments to
etandards as part of thalr anvwiat Improvement process.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
IFRS 8 Financial Instruments

Prepayment Features with Negative Compansation 1 January 2018
IFRS 17  Insurance Coniracts

New accounting standard 1 January 2021
IAS 28 Investments In Associates and Joint Vertures

Long-tarm interests in Assoclates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Definition of Material 1 January 2020
IAS 8 Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors

Definition of Material 1 Janueary 2020
IAS 19 Empioyes Benefits

Pian Amendment, Curtaliment or Settiernent 1 January 2019
IAS 28 Irrvastments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Long-term Interests In Associates and Joirt Ventures 1 Januery 2018
IAS 40 Investment Property

Transfers of investiment Property 1 July 2018
IFRIC23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments

New Interpratation 1 January 2019

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of any standards and interpretations listad above will have a
material impact on the Group or Company’s financial statements in the pericd of initin! application, aithough the
assessment |8 ongoing.

2. Financlal Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The impact on retained eamings of the adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Laases’ was as follows:

£m
" Recognttion of right-of-use assets (note 11) o 0.9
Racognition of lease Rabilities (33.1)
Elimination of rent prepayments {0.4)
Recognition of associgted deferred tax (note 18) ) o o ) 0.4
Reduction in retained sarnings as at 26 Aol 2018 LX)

When meesuring lease liabiiities, the Group discountad leass payments using appropriate incremental borrowing
rates. The weighisd average rate appliad is 5.8%. The Company has no operating leass commitments.

27 Aprtil
2018
o _ . Em
Operating lease commiiment at 26 Aprll 2018 as previously disciosed 843
Rscognition of minimum rental increases not accountad for under LAS17 o 205.7
Adiusted operating lsase commitment at 28 Apidl 2018 T 300.0
Discountad using the incremental borrowing retes at 27 April 2018 33.1

Other immaterisl lssse commitmeants , o ) -
_Lesss labilities recognised at 27 Aprll 2018 . 331
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprll 2019 (continued)

3. Segmental reporting

Eharwood Elvedsn Longleat Whinfell Woburn  Central
Forest Forust Forest Forsat Forest Saervices Total

52 weeks snded 25 Aptil 2019 mﬂ'} ) _ﬁj[ ) &m &m  fm £m £m
Revenue 100.8 100.9 g2.2 8.1 @2 @ - 480.2
Adjusted EBITDA 56.7 54.2 50.3 47.1 50.2 (25.8) 2326
Deprecistion and amortigation _(61.T)
Operating profit 174.9
Sherwood  Elvaden Longieat Whinfel Wobum  Central

Forest Forest Forest Forest Forest Services Total
53 wesla ended 26 Aprll 2018 £m £m £m £m £m gm Em
Revenve %85 967 918 888 834 - 4800
Adjusted EBITDA §5.5 52.5 49.5 48.3 494 (24.8) 2284
Excaptional/non-underlying
sdministrative costs (2.3)
Depreciation and amaortisation {52.7}
Operting profit 1734

Operating segments are reportad In a manner conalatent with the Internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker, as defined by IFRS 8 ‘Opsrating Segments’. The Chief Operating Declslon Maker, who s

responsibie for allocating resources and gssasaing performance cof the operating segments, has been identified as
the Board of Directors.

The operating segments are the five holfiday villages that the business operatea. Central Sarvices costs are centrally
managed administration costs. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policles described In note 1.

The primary profit measure used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ls Adjusted EBITDA, being eamings before
interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and sxceptionalnon-underlying tems. The intemal reporting does not
disaggregste the balance sheet to each operating segment.

The split of revenue by business stream was £200.6 million (2018: £280.0 million) for accommodation and £186.6
milon {2018: £189.0 million) for on-site spand. The spilt of gross profit was £261.2 million (2018: £253.3 milllon) for
accommodation and £88.9 millon (2018; £82.0 million} for on~-site spand.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

4. Operating profit

The following items have been included In arriving at the Group's operating profit

52 wooks 83 woeoks
snded 25 anded 28
April 2019 April 2018

7 . m_ £m
Staf? costs (nate 24) 114.8 100.8
Coet of Inventories a7 40.5
Dapreciation of property, pient and equipment — owned asseta {note 10) 50.1 47.8
Dapraciation of right-of-use asaets (note 11) 0.6 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) 7.0 6.1
Operating lease rentals — land and bulkiings - 1.4
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and aguipment 124 12.1
Services provided by the Group's suditor 0.4 0.4

During the period, the Group obtained the foliowing servicas from the Group's auditor:

wesks 53 weoks
anded 25 anded 26
Aprl 2019  Apill 2018

- o £m £m
Charged to the Incomas stztemant
Audtt of the parent company, subsidlary and consolidated financial statements 0.2 0.2
Deferred cost in respect of the secured debt
_Corporete finance services ) 02 02
0.4 0.4

The Directors montior the lavel of non-audit work undertaken by the auditor and ensure It Is work which they are best
suited to perform and does not present a risk to their Independencs and objectivity. The audit fee above inciudes
£2,000 (2018: £2,000) for the audtt of the parent company.

5. Excesptional/non-underiying items
The foliowing exceptional/non-underiying items are reflacted in the financfal statements:

2019 2018
) . - &m £m
Gpeorsting itams

_Administrative expenses o L o - {2.3)
- {2.3)
“Non-opersting Itsns o - ) T
Finance sxpense {1.1} (26.9)
Taxation 1.5 1.2
e - - e — % it
) T y (8.2) (22.0)

The £7.7 millon exceptionalinon-underiying finante sxpense In tha current period represents the premium pald on
the asttiemant of the A3 tranchs of the Group’s secured dsbt of £6.1 milllon and accelerated amortisation of deformed
lssue costs in respect of the A3 tranche of £1.6 miflon. Taxation on this expense has aiso been treated as an
exceptional/non-underlying ltam.

Exceptional/non-undertying administrative expenses in the prior petiod represented £1.6 millon of costs relating to
legal claims and assoclated settiaments, togather with £0.7m of one-off restructuring and recrganisation costs. The
£26.8 milfon exceptional/non-underlying finance expense In the prior perlod representad the premium pald on the
settiement of the B2 tranche of the Group's sacured debt. Taxation on these expenses was also treated as an
exceptional/non-undarying Hem.

A taxation credh of £1.9 milion in respect of a one-off adjustment to pgroup rellef was also treated as an
exceptonal/non-undertying fem in the prior perkod.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 wasks ended 25 April 2019 {continued)

6. Net finance costs

Group Company
S2weaks S3wocks | S2weels 53 woeks
anded 26 ended 26 onded 25 ended 26
April 2019  ApMl 2018 | April 2018  Aprdl 2018
fm £m Em £m
Finance expenss
Interest payable on borrowings (88.9) (88.0y - -
- Lees: Interest capiteiised 0.5 0.2 - -
Intereat expense on lease llablities {1.9) - - -
Interest payable to Group undertakings - - (28.0) (38.5)
Other Interest and similar charges o o8 o - -
Total finence expense before exceptional/non-underlying tems (90.9) (88.5 {28.0} {38.5)
Exceptionai/mon-underlying finance exponse
- Accelerated amortisation of deferred lssue costs (1.6) - - -
= Premium on setdement of the A3 notes @1) - - -
- Premium on settiement of tha B2 notes - {26.8) . -
. on - (289 - -
Total inance expenss {98.9) (1S4 (28 {30.5)
Financs Income
Bank Interest recelvable 02 0.3 - -
Interest recelvable from Group undertakings - - 13.7 30.1
Total finance Income j L 02 0.3 137 301
Nst inance costs (88.4) (1167 (12.3) {9.4)

interest payable on borrowings includes amortisation of deferred lssue costs of £3.6 milllon (2018: £4.4 million).
The Interest rate applied In detarmining the amount of interest capitalsed in the perod was approxdmately 4.8%

(2018: 4.T%).
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2019 (continued)

7. Taxation
{a) Taxation

The Group pald corporation tax of £3.1 milllon (2018: £1.0 millon) during the period and made payments for taxation
group rellef of £10.9 mifon (2018: £nll}. .

The Group tax charge ia made up as follows:

52 wooks 53 weeks
onded 25 ended 28
April 2010 Aprll 2048

~ . o fm E£m
Current tax: B .
- Current period (5.8) {4.9)
.= Prior padods y _ Qn 8o
{7.3) .1
Deferred tax:
- Origination and reversal of iming differences (7.9} (4.0)
_ = Adjustments In respect of prior pericds - N 1.8 (6.8)
Taxation (note T{b)) (13.7} (6.8)

The Comparry had a tax cherge of Enll in the period (2018: £nil},
(b} Factors affecting the tax charge

Group
The tex assessed for the perod Is lower (2018: lower) then that resulting from applying the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 16%). Tha difference is reconclied below:
Siwesks 53 weeks
ended 26 aended 26
April 2019  April 2018
£m

£m

_Profit before taxation L j 7685 58.3
Profit befora taxation multiplied by the standard rats of corporation tax In the UK 14.8 111
Ad|ustments [n respect of prior periods 0.2 (2.1}
Permanent differences and axpenses not deductible for tax purpcses 0.0 1.5
Impact of changs in corporation tax rate {1.0) {0.6)
Indeaxtion on futurs caplial gains - {2.5)
Brought forward losses not previously recognised ({0.8) . 10.8)
Tax charge for the period (note 7(a)) 13.7 8.8

Company

The tax assessed for the period 18 lower {2018 lower) than that resuling from applying the standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 18%% (2018: 19%). The difference Is raconclied below:
S2wesks 53 weeks
ended 25 ended 26
April 2019  Apri 2018

) _&m £m
__Profit bafore taxation L e L 4385 4.7
Proftt befors taxation mutipiisd by the standard rate of conporation tax In the UK 829 8.5
Group relisf not psid for 24 1.8
Income from subsiciary undertaldngs — not subject to tax (88.3) (14.2)
Release of intra-group recelvable — not subject o tax B . ag

Tax charge for the penod (note 7(a)) T S -
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks snded 28 April 2018 (continued)

7. Taxation (continued)

Finance Act 2016, which was substantively enacled on 6 September 2018, Included provisions #o reduce the
standard rate of cotporation tax In the UK to 17% with effect from 1 April 2020.

Deafermad tax |s calculated at a rate of 17% (2018: 17%).

8. Goodwill
Group
At 25 Apnl 2018, 26 April 2018 and 20 Aprll 2017 157.8

Impalrment test for goodwill
Goodwill relatss to the acquisition of the Sharwood, Eiveden, Longleat and Whinfell Villages only. It Is allocated
equally to four cash-genemting units (CGUs), being the four villages.

The Directors consider that the economic charactaristics and future expeciations are materially consistent across
each of the four vilages.

The recoverable amount of a COU Is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Thess calculations use cash
flow projections based on financlal forecasts prepared by menagement covering a rolling flive-year period.

Koy assumptions usad for value-in-use caiculstions

‘The value-n-use calculation is based on forecasts approved by the Board covering the next ten years with a terminat
value applied after year five.

The key assumptions of the value-in-use calculetion are Adusted EBITDA margin, growth rates and the discount
rate; the long-tetm growth rate applied Is 2.0% (2018: 2.3%) and the discount rate applied Is 8.79% (2018: 9.0%).

Management dotenmine forecast Adjusted EBITDA margins based on past performance and axpeciationa of markst
deveiopment. The growth rates used reflact management's expectations of the future merket. Diecount rates used
ara pre-tax and reflact the spacific risks to the Group.

Based on the value-in-uss calculations parformed, the Directors have concluded that there is no impaiment of
goodwilll. The Directors have parformad sansitivity analysis using the full range of reasonable assumptions and no
Impaiment triggers hava been identfled.

Tha Company has no goodwill.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2018 (continuad)
9. Other intangible assets
Software Brand Total
e N m fm Em
Cost ’
At 27 Apr| 2018 37.4 1212 188.6
Additions 6.8 - 6.8
_Digposals . o (2.1) - . {21y
At 28 Aprll 2019 4 - 421 12i2 1633
L
AL 27 April 2018 a9 - 9.0
Charge for the period 7.0 - 1.0
_On disposals o o o {21 - [2.,1}’:
At Api 2019 e L 148 148
Net book amount st 26 April 2018 - ] P12 1212 1487
Net book amount at 28 April 2019 3 1212 1485
Software Brand Total
o . gm gm = £m
At 21 Apd) 2017 228 121.2 143.8
Additions 1.3 - 11.3
Raciassification from property, plant and equipment 8.7 - 8.7
Disposals . R o 32 .- (3.2)
At28 Apri 2018 o O 374 1212 158.8
— i L d
At 21 April 2017 8.0 . &.0
Charge for the period 5.1 . 5.1
On disposals o o o (3.2 - 3.2
AL 28 April 2018 N (X - 98
Net book amount at 20 Apnl 2017 - o 146 1213 1358
Net book amount at 28 April 2018 278 1292 T 48T

The brand |s considerad to have an indefintts Iife due to the continued invesiment that is made in the guest faciities
and the ongoing marketing campaigns of the business. An impaiment revisw using the same assumptions as
detaled in note B hes been undertaken and no impeirment wae Indicatad (2018: £nl).

The Company has no other intanglble assets.
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for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2018 (continued)
10. Property, plant and equipment
Motor Assyis
vehiciss In the
Land and Fixtures and courss of
bulidings Inetaliations and fittings  hardwars construction Total
£m £m Em £m £m __Bm
Cost "
At 27 Aprli 2018 11672 405.3 1327 191 85 1,7228
Additions 8.8 18.0 25.7 21 7.7 60.3
Disposals - - (14.4) (1.5) - (16.6)
Transfers . - B4 32 0.8 - (12.2) -
“ AL 25 Aprll 2010 11714 42685 148 2 N7 40 170682
Al 27 April 2018 16.5 1635 58.7 14.3 - 252.0
Chargs for the period 0.2 20.6 203 3.0 - 50.1
On disposals - - (14.4) (1.5 - {15.8)
At 25 Aprl 2018 o L M7 1804 M8 168 - 2882
Net book amournt at 26 April 2018 1147 2418 740 48 85 14708
Net boolt amount at 25 Aprll 2019 1,188.7 2384 80.0 39 40 14800
wehiclas In the
Land and Fixtures and course of
bulidings Inetsiistions andfittings hardware construction Total
e £m £m Em &m Em £m_
Cost
At 21 Aprll 2017 1,127.8 3785 12.2 187 274 16826
Additions 123 24 25.0 20 1.5 73.2
Disposals - - (4.7 (1.6) - (8.9)
Recizssification to intangible assels - - - - (6.7) 8.7)
Transfers A 84 02 - 23.7) -
M26apiizo1s 0 a7z 483 127 0 WA 88 17228
Deprecistion
At 21 Aprl 2017 16.3 137.7 45.6 121 - 210.7
Charge for the period 0.2 25.8 17.8 38 - 47.8
On dispossla - - (4.7) (1.6 - (6.3
At26Aprllzorl Jies - 1638 0 587 @ 143 - 2820
_Netbook amourt at 20 April 2017 L1125 =~ 2388 & 66 274 14518
Net book amount at 28 April 2018 1,141.7 2418 74.0 43 8.5 14708
The Company has no property, plant and equipment.
11. Right-of use assets
m -
Cost
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leasss’ 309
Addiions . 02
31.1
Depreciation
- Charge for the perlod ended 25 Aprll 2018 . , . 108
Nst book amount at 28 April 2019 e ...
The Company has no right-of-use asssts.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2018 (continued)

12. Investments In subsidiary undertakings

Coat and net book value
A125 Aprll 2019, 28 Aprit 2018 and 20 April 2017 o ) , 488.0

The investment at 25 Aprll 2018 rolatas #o 100% of the ordinary sharea of Center Parcs (Holdings 2) Limited, e
company regletered in England and Wales. The principal activity of Center Parcs {Holdings 2) Limited Is that of an
Intermediate holding company. Center Parcs (Holdings 2) Limiked made a profit of £448.8 millon (2018; profit of

£74.5 million) for the perlod ended 25 April 2019 and had net sssets at that dete of £466.9 million (2018: £466.8
million).

The Directors balleve that tha carrying value of investments Is supported by the recoverabls amount of the investes.
A list of all subsidiary undertakings consolidated In thess financial statements ts set out In note 27.

13. Trade and other recelvables

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Amounts falling due within ong year: __ £m £m | £m £m
Trade recelvables 81 4.1 - -
Amaounts owed by Group undertakings - - - 2234
Amounts owed by related parties - 14 - -
Prepayments and accrued Income 42 e - -
Other recaivables _ 0.6 04! - -
9.9 9.8/ - 2234

Tha falr value of trade and othér recelvables are equal to their book value and no impalment provisions have been

made (2018; £nll). Credit risk In respect of the Group's revenue streams s imited as tha vast majority of custormers
pay in advance,

Amcunts owed by Group undertakings at 28 Aprl 2018 represented amounts due from Center Parcs (Holdings 3}
Limited and Included loans totalling £218.7 millon end assoclated unpaid Interest. Intarcst was receivabis at a rate
of 8% per annum and was not compounded. The total amount recelvable at the prior period-end was net of an
interest free payable of £2.2 millon In respect of normal trading activiies. These amounts were unsecured and
repayable on demand. The balances were settied during the curment pariod as set out In note 28.

an
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Notes to the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)
14, Trade and other payahlos

Group ‘ Company
{restated) :
2019 2018 i 2019 2018
o &m Em £m £m
Trade payables 6.8 56 - -
Other tax and soclal sacurity 174 159 - -
Other payables 4.1 27 - -
Amounts owed to related parties 04 1085 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 1109 587.6
Accruals 823 80.2 - -
Deferred Income 9.3 83.1 - -
190.3 188.0 190.9 587.8

Amounts owed 10 Group undertakings at 25 Aprl 2010 represent an Interest-free payable due to Center Parce
{Opersating Company} Limited.

Amounts owed to Group underiakings at 26 April 2018 principally related to loans of £383.7 millon due to other
members of the Centsr Parcs (Holdings 1} Limited Group and the aesociated unpakd interest. intenest was payabie at
a rate of 8% per annum and was not compounded. Interest of £26.0 million {(2018: £39.0 million) was payable on
these lpans during the period. Thase loans were settied during the current period as set out In note 26.

Al amounts owed to related parties and Group underiakings at the current and prior period-end are unsecured and
repayable on demand.

Defemmad Income represents revenues recstved at the period end date that relate to future periods; the principal
component (s accommodation Income. Deferred incoma principally rolates to bookings for holidays In the 12 months
Immediately following the balance sheet date; approximately 1% of bookings reiate to the subsequent year.

15. Borrowings
Group
2010 2018
Current o e . £m £m
Morigage due within one year 0.3 0.3
Group
2019 2018
Non-curre _ £m £m
0.1 0.3
Secured debt 1.879.2 1,747.8
1,079.3 1,748.1
Mortgage

The Group has & mortgage securad over its head office which Incurs Interost at LIBOR plus 1.125% and matures In
2020. Annual repayments on this morigage total £2687,000. A one percentage point movement in Interost rates
would affact this intsrsat charge by approxdmately £4,000 {2018: £6,000).




Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weaks ended 28 April 2019 (continued)

15. Borrowings (continued)
Secured debt
Tha secured debt consists of the following:

2019 2018
_‘ _ , o o o em  fm
Tranche A2 440.0 440.0
Tranche A3 - 350.0
Tranche A4 350.5 248.6
Tranche A5 3708 <,
Tranche B3 480.0 480.0
Tranche B4 250.0 250.0
- Unemortised doferred Issue costs N B 3 (20.8) {20.8)

A - 18792 17478

On 16 June 2017 the Group lesued an additfonal £100.0 million of Tranche A4 secured notes via & tap Iseue, at a
premium of £9.5 million; this premium Is being amortised over the period to expacted msturltyand amorfisation of
£1.1 milon (2018: £0.9 million) was credited to the Income statement during the period. On the same dets the
Group lsaued £730.0 milllon of New Class B secured notes, dividad into £480.0 milion B3 notes and £250.0 miiion
B4 notes. Part of the proceeds of these new notes was uaad to settie tha Group’s Class B2 secured notes.

On 20 November 2018 the Group issued g further £100.0 milion of Tranche A4 secured notes via a tap Issue, at a
pmmhmdmzmlm.ﬁnmmmhmmwmapmdwwm and amortisation of
£0.2 milllon was credited to the Income statement during the period. On the same date the upiuuod
mifiion of New Claas A5 notes. Part of the proceads of these new notes was used to settle the Group’s Class
secured noies.

i"m

The tranche A2 notes have an axpected maturity date of 28 February 2024 and a final maturity date of 28 February

2042. The Interest rate to axpected maturity Is fixad at 7.230% and the Interest rate from expected maturity to final
maturity is fixad at 7.919%.

The tranche A3 notes had an axpected maturity date of 28 Februaty 2020 and a final maturty data of 28 February
2042, Tholn;a&&nhbmmdmammymmwdatzm%mdholntnreltmtefromexpectedmnmtyhﬂrﬂ
maturity was 3. .

The franche A4 notes have an expectad maturity date of 28 August 2025 and a finalf maturity date of 28 February

2042. The Interest rate to expectsd maturily Is fixed at 3.588% and the interest rate from expected maturity to final
maturity le 4.244%,

The tranche AS notes have an expected maturily date of 28 August 2028 and a final maturity date of 28 February
2047. The imerest rate to expscted maturity is fixed at 3.680% and the intereet rate from expectad maturity to final
maturity bs foead at 4.190%.

The tranche B3 notes have an expectad maturity date of 28 August 2022 and a final maturity dale of 28 February
2047. Tha Interest rate to both axpected maturity and final maturity Is fixed at 4.250%.

The franche B4 notes have an expscted maturity date of 28 August 2025 and a final maturity date of 28 February
2047. The Interest rate to both expacted maturity and final maturity is fixed at 4.876%

‘The tranche B3 and B4 debt Is subordinated to the Class A debl. All tranchee of securad debt Inciude opticnal
prepayment clauses permiiting the Group to rapay the debt In advance of the expected maturily date. All tranches of
debt are subject to financlal covenants. The Directors have assessed future compliance and at this time do not
foresee any breach of the financial covenants,

Intereet of £18.0 milllon (2018: £13.0 milion) was accrued in respect of the sscured debt at 25 Aprll 2018.




Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

15. Borrowings {continued)

The maturlly of the Group’s barrowinga is as follows:

Premium
Greater and
Less than Two toflve than five daferred
one year yoars youis |ssub costa Total
SRR, - SRR - .. B £m &m  &m
At 26 April 2019
Morigage 03 0.1 - - 0.4
Securad debt A - 820.0 888.5 {10.3) 1,878.2
Total borrowings 03 9204 900.5 {10.3) 15706
At 26 April 2018
Morigage 0.3 0.3 - - 0.6
~ Secured debt e - 830.0 830.0 {12.2) 1,747.8
_Totalborrowings 63 803 9300 (123 17484
All amounts are danominated In £ sterling.
The Company has no borrowings.
18. Loases
Laaee labiites
Current pericd disciosures for the Group, as requirad by IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ are as follows.
25 April
2019
L 11 . T e wAmAm T st 11 £m
Maturity analysie =~ contractual undiscounted cash flows
Leas than one year 18
Orne to five yoars 80
More thar: five years - e e e 410
. Total undiscounrted lease habliities at 25 April 2019 I 288.6
Lasse lisbiities included In the consolidated balance shest at 25 April 2019
Current -
Nor-cusrent {33.8)
Total fease liabilites N e By
Amounts recogniaad In the income statement
interest on ieese iabiftes .. . . . 119
_ Totul recognised In the Income statement (1.9}
Amounts recognisad In the cash fiow atatement
Repayment of lsage liabillies -
Interest on lease liabllties 18
Total recopnised in the cash flow statement — e 1B

Lease Kabiilities are pradominantly in respect of the land et the Longleat and Wobum villeges. Both of these lease
agreements include fve-ysarly upwards only rent reviews calculated with reference to revenue Incrsases,

The Company has no lease labifitiee.

34



Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weaks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

16. Leasea (conmtinued)

Prior period disciosurea for the Group, as required by LAS17" ‘Leasee’ are as follows:

Land and bulidings

2018

Commitmests under non-canceliable operating isasss due: . __&m
Within one year 1.4
In more than one year b less than five years 8.3
In more than five years o B B7.8
84.3

The Group had no other openating lease commitments. The Company had no operaiing 'ease commitents.
17. Financlal instruments

Financlal instruments by category

The accounting policles for financlal instruments have been applied to the items below. As at 25 April 2019 end 26
April 2018 all of the Group's financial sssets were classifiod as those measured at emortised cost and all of the
Group’s financial Habilties wers catogorised as other financlal llabilities.

Under 1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement, all of the Group's financlal masets were
as loans and recelvables and all of the Group's financial liablites were categorised es other financial

liabliies.
Group
2019 2018
Financis) assets o 4 . _&m @ &m
Trade recoivables 5.1 4.1
Other receivables 0.8 18
_Caeh and cash equivalents o o ] o 80.2 48.1
859 §2.0
Group
2019 2018
Financlal {labiiities e N L _em  _._ -fm.
External borrowings 1,879.8 1,7480.4
Logse labliities 336 -
Trade payabies | X ] . 56
Accruals s © 802 ..
. Dther payabies ) » 45 132

1,987.1 “:;15827.2';
The only fnancial instruments held by the Company are other receivebles of £nll (2018: £223.4 milllon), which are
classifiad a8 those measured at amortised cost, and other payables of £110.8 million (2018: £587 .6 millon) which are
categorised as cther financlal lablities.
Falr value hlerarchy ‘
IFRS 13 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' requires falr vaiue measurements to be recognised using a fair value
hisrarchy that reflects the significance of tha inputs used In the measurements, according to the following leveis:
Level 1 {Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or Nabliitias.

Leval 2 [nputs gther than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or labliity, alther
dlrectly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the aseet or kabllity that are not based on obeervabla market data (that Is, unobaervable Inputs).

All of the Group's falr value measurementa have bsen categorised as Level 1 (2018; Levet 1) and falr values have
been derived from unadjusied quoted market prices in active markets.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks snded 28 April 201% {(continued)

17. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair valus of financial essets and financial lisbliites
The falr vaiue of the Group's secured debt is:

25 Apriil 2019 25 April 2018
Book valus Falrvalue Bookvalus  Falr value
N - £m £m £m Em
Tranche A2 4406 8340 400 5458
Tranche A3 - - 350.0 3558
Tranche A4 350.5 368.0 248.6 252.2
Tranche AB s 3872 - -
Tranche B3 480.0 488.6 480.0 4833
_Tranche B4 2600 252.6 250.0 252.1

10008 20403 @ 17686 18800
Tha fair vaiue of all other financial assets and financial Eabilides are approximataly equal to thelr book vaiues.

Maturity of financial liabliities
The non-discounted minimum future cash flows in respect of financla! lablliies are:

Secured
Mortgage deht Total
At 28 April 2019 : _ . . &m  Bm  _&m
in leas than one year 03 80.6 90.9
in two to five years 0.3 1,243.3 1.243.6
Inmorethanfivoyears , - 1,082.7 1,082.7
hmoreihantive years 00 o3 H 3
Sscurad
Mortgage debt Total
At 28 April 2018 L o £m Em o &m
In lees than one year 0.3 824 827
In two to five yeers 0.8 1,118.4 1.117.0
_inmorethanfive ycars - 1,006.1 1,005.1

09 22030 2,204.3

The Coipany hae no non-current financial liabllites.

Financlal risk management

The Group finances fia operations through a mixture of aquity and borrowings as required. The Group has sought fo
reduce Its cost of capital by refinancing and restructuring the Group's funding uohgtheundeﬂylnqauetvnlue All
tranches of the Group's securad debt are subject to financial covenants. The Diraciors have assessed futuro
compliance and at this ime do not foreses any breach of the financlal covenants. The overall policy In respect of
Interest rates Is to reduce the Group’s exposure io interes! rate fluctustions, and the Group's primary source of
borrowings I8 fixed Interest rate loan notes. The Group does not actively trade in derivative financlal instruments.

Interest rate risk

As at 25 Aprll 2019 and 26 April 2018 the Group had fixed rate loan notes and & ficating rate morigage as lis only
extemnai funding sources.

Liquidity risk

As at 25 April 2018, the Group held sufficient laveis of cash to enable It to meet its medium-term working capital,
Imase Hability and funding obligations. Rolling Jorecasis of the Group's liquidity requirements are prepared and
monttored, and surplus cash |s investad In interest bearing accounts.

Currency risk

The Group !s axposed to imited currency risk through foreign currency transactions. Tha Group does not operate a
hedging facifity to manage currency rigk as it le considered ¥ ba insignificant,
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2018 (continued)

17. Financlal instruments (continued)

Cradit risk
The Group borrows from well-established Institutions with high credit ratings. The Group's cash balances are hald on
deposit with a number of UK banking inetitutions.

18. Deferred tax
Group
2019 2018
£m £m
Deferred tax asasats
Deferred tax assots {0 be recovered after mare than 12 monthe 0.2 0.8
0.2 0.8
Deferred tax liabliities
Defered tax ligbliities to be recovered after more than 12 months ey (92.0)
{971.3) (62.04

Forecasts agreed by the Directors Indicate that the defermed tax assets will ba utiised In the foresseebls future
against taxable profits. The movemsnt on the deferred tax account la:
Group
52 weaks 53 weeks
snded 25 ended 28
April 2019 Aprll 2018

e v o ———— Rre— - m Em

At the baginning of the period (81.2) (80,0}

Charged 1o the Income statement (0.4) {10.9)

Cradited/(chargad) to the statament of comprehenaive Income 0.1 (0.3)

Impact of change in accounting policy — IFRS 16 o o 04 -

At the and of the period (97.1) (91.2)

Accalsrated Short-term
Land and capltal timing Intangible
bulidings wsliowances difforences Penalon assets Leases Totel

N o Em gm  _8m fm = Em &m  &m

At 28 April 2018 (67.7) c.e 3.7 0.2 (20.8) - 91.2)

Credited/(charged) to the Income

statement 05 (3.2} 0.3 (0.1} - (3.9} (8.4)

Cradited to tha statemert of

comprehensive income - - - 0.1 - - 0.1

Impact of change In accounting

policy —IFRS 16 - - = - - 04 04

At 25 April 2019 (87.2) (2-8) (34 0.2 (20.8) (3.8 (97.9)

Accelerated Short-term
Land and capital timing Intangible
bulidings allowancss diffsrences Pension asents Total

At 20 April 2017 (70.5) 145 (3.9) 0.5 (20.6) {80.0)

Cradited/{charged} to the income

statement 2.8 (13.9) 0.2 - - (10.9)

Charged to the statement of

comprehonsive Income - - - 0y - {0.3)

At 28 aprll 2018 {87.7) 0.6 (3.7} 02 (20.6) (91.2)

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £4.1 milllen {2018: £4.7 millon). This relates to carrled forward
tax losses In non-frading subeldiaries which are not forecast to be utilsed in the foreessable future. Deferred tax is
calculated at a rate of 17% (2018: 17%). The Company has no deferred tax.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 82 weeks ended 26 April 20198 (continued)

19. Equity share capital - Company

2019 2018
Allotted and fully pald . . #&m @ Em
1,000,005 ordinary shares of £1 sach 1.0 1.0

On 3 August 2017 the Company made a bonus issue of one share at a premium of £133.9 millon (sse note 20).
The Company was Incorporated In 2011 and hence does not have an authorised share caplial.

of
The Croup's oblectives whan managing capital ars to safeguand the Group's ability to continue as a going concem In
order {0 provide retums for sharshoiders and banefits for other stakeholders and to maintain en optimal caphsl
structurs to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjuwst
the amount of dividands paid to shansholders, retum caplital o sharsholdars, issus new shares, sell assats to reduce
debt or borrow addifional debt.

20. Share premium, other reserve and retained earnings

Share Other Retalned

premium ressrve  samings

Al 27 Aprll 2018 - {154.0) (35.4)
Impact of change In acoounting polcy —IFRS16 e (2.2)
Adjusted balances st 27 Apii 2018 - (15400 (376
Profit for the period - - 62.8
Net movemant on penslon achame - - (0.8)
Dividends L ) o S - - (183.2
At 28 April 2019 - (154.0) {188.5)
Share Other  Retalned

premhan reserve  sarnings

Group £m £m £m
AL 21 Aprll 2017 74.3 (154.0) 1384
Impact of change in accounting policy ~ IFRS§ 15 ) e s (0.8)
Adjusted balances at 21 April 2017 743 (1540) 1358
Profit for the period - - 51.5
Net moverent on pension scheme - - 1.4
Benus Issue of shares 133.8 - (133.9)
Capitel reduction (208.2) - 208.2
At 26 pgril 2018 - (154.0) (38.4)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks snded 25 April 2019 {continued)

20. Share premium, other reserve and retained earnings (continued)

Share Other  Retained
premium reserve  eamnings

Compeny &m ém  &m
A 27 April 2018 S T - e 1017
Proft for the period - - 4385
Dividends o - o - - (183.2)
At 25 Apcii 2019 - - "385.0
Shere Other  Retained

premium ressrve eamings

Company £m £m £m
At 21 April 2017 o T 743 12861 1648
Profit for the period - - 47
Bonus lssue of shares 1339 (128.1) (7.8)
Capital reduction (208.2) - 2082
Dividends o - - {208.2)
AL 26 April 2018 - = 1T

During the pericd the Company pald dividends totalling £183.2 milion (2018: £288.2 millon). Of this total, the
Company distributed £183.0 milllon of cash and £0.2 million of recatvables.

21. Working caplital and non-cash movements

Group
52 weaks 53 wogks
ended 28 ended 26
April 2019  Aprit 2018

£m £m
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment o T YT {(0.2)
incresse In Inventories (0.1) (0.1)
Increase In trade and cther receivables {0.7) (2.0}
Incresse in trade and other payables o o 8.0 14.8
71 12.5
22. Analysis of net debt
Nom=cash
movemants
and
At 26 Aprti Cash deferred At 25 Apri
2018 flow lssue costs 2019
— . £m m gm  &m
Cash and cash squivalents
_Cesh at bank and In hand . e 41 41 - 00 e02
i . 441 144 - 60.2
Borrowings dus within one year
Mogage , 03 . 02 0.2y {0.9)
e {03 02 @ 0y {03
Borrowings dus sfter more than ona year
Morigage {0.3} - 0.2 (0.1)
_Secured debt e {1.747.8) (132.7)y 13 {1.879.2)
. - {1,748.1) (1327 15 1,870.3
Net debt (1,7023) (118.4) 13 {1,810.4)
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weaks ended 25 April 2018 (continuad)

22. Analysis of net debt (continued)

Non-cash
movemants
and
At 20 April Cash deferred At 26 Aprll
2017 flow Ilssum cosls 2018
e o A £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash squivaients
_Cash at bank and in hand .0 121 - 48.1
40 121 - ... |
Borrowings dus within ons year
Morigege N (0.3 0.3 (0-3) L)
i o (0.3} 0.3 (0.3} (8-3)
Borrowings due after more than one year
Merigage {0.6) - 0.3 {0.%)
Secured dabt S (1474.9) (2785 58 (1,741.9)
o . - (1.474.7) 1278.5) 8.1 [1,748.1
“Net debit {1.441.0) {267.1) 58 (1,7023)
Neat debt repressnts borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Non-cash movements and deferred issue costs represant the following:
2010 2018
. Em £m
Deferrad lssue coats incurmed during the pariod
- Cash settied 4.8 9.3
- Accryed 0.4 -
Amortisation of deferred issue costa (note 8)
- Ordinary {3.8) (4.4)
- Excaptional/non-undartying (1.8) -
Amortisation of premium on lésue of secured notes (note 15) 13 0.8
1.3 6.8

23, Capital commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had capitel expendiure contracted for but not provided of £21.4 million (2018:
£22.0 miliion).

The Company has no capital commitments.
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2019 (continued)

24, Employess and Directors

Group
weeks 63 woeks
anded 28 ended 28
Apdl 2018  Apiil 2018

Staff costs during the period: o L £m £m
Wagea and salaties 1054 1013
Social security costs 4.1 5.7
Pension costs L 5 , . a1 28
114.6 109.8

The monthly average number of peopis {Including exacutive Directors) employed by the Group during the period was:

~ Group _
B2 weeks 53 weoks
ended 23 ended 26
Aprii 2019  Aprl 2018

By activity. e . o - Number  Number -
Leisure, retall and food and beverage TS sas T 3.742
Houseksaping, technical and estate services 3972 3,775
Administration . o m e GE. 875

~_8T2-—— 8,392

Empiloyes numbers Inciude only those on contracts of service and hence exclude temporary workers.

The Company has no employses.
ay management compensation
wesks 53 weeks
endad 25 ended 26
Aprll 2018  Aprll 2018
Short-term benelits B . _ o 28 28

Key management compensation sncompasses the Diractors and certaln senior managers of the Group,

Directors’ remuneration
42 wesls 53 weeks
snded 25 onded 26
April 2019  April 2018
£m £m

Remiyneration in respect of gualifying services T ' 14 16
One Director (2018: one) has retinement benefits accruing under the Group’s money purchase pension schame, in

respect of which the Group made coniributions of £10,000 (2018: £7,500) in the period. In addition, retirement
banedits are accniing to ona Director (2018: one Director) under tha Group's defined banefit pension scheme,

included in the above are the following amounts in respect of the highest paki Director, who Is a member of the
Group's defined benefit pansaion scheme:

S2weeks 53 weoks

ended28  ended 26

Apri 2019 April 2018

P - . - e — e e e m £m
- 09 1.0
0.3

Aggregste emoiuments
Accrued genalan at the end of the period 0.1

41
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks anded 25 April 2019 {continuad)

24. Employees and Dirsctors {continued)

Advances to Director

During the prior period, a loan of £0.5 millon was advanced to Mr C G McKinlay. This loan atiracts interest et a rate
of 2.5% per annum. A repayment of £0.2m was recsived during the perled (2018: a repayment of £0.1 milllon),
resulting In 2 balance of £02 milion owed In the Group at 25 Aprll 2019 (2018: £0.4 millon). This balance Is
included within other recelvables,

28. Pesnsion commitments

Defined contribution penislon schams

The Group participates In the Cenier Parcs pension scheme, which is a defined contribution pension scheme with a
contributory and a non-contributory membership level. Pension coets for the defined contribution schema for tha
period ended 25 April 2019 were £2.8 millon (2018: £2.5 million).

Accruals per note 14 Include £0.5 million (2018: £0.4 milllon) in respect of defined contrbution pension scheme coels.
Defined benefit psnsion schame

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for certain employees. Contributions are determined
by an independsnt quailfiad actuary using assumpticns on the rate of retum on investments and rates of increases In
salarles and benefits.

The last available actuarial valustion of the scheme at the balanca shest date was that performed as at 31 July 2017.
This was updated to 26 April 2019 by s qualified Independent actuary.

The Impact of guarantaed minkmum pansions {("GMP"} equalisation is expected to less than £0.1 milion.
Actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

e L 018 2018
Discount rate 2.80% 2.80%
Rate of price Inflation (RPY) 3.20% 3.10%
Rate of price Inflation {CP)) 2.20% 2.10%
Rate of Increasa in salaries 220% 2.10%
Life expeciancy from age 80, for a male:

Currently age 60 280 years 28.7 yoars
Currentty age 50 293 yesrs  20.8 yaars

The amaunts recognisad In the balance sheat ars detsrmined as follows:

2019 2018
Present value of funded obligations (18.3) (15.1)
Falr value of plan nesets . | . I 13.8
Net pansion fisbility (1.3} (1.2}

At the balance sheet date, the present value of the defined benefit obligation was comprised as follows:
Number of Llabliity Duration

I members split  (yeswrs)

Active members 4 55% 20
Defarred mambaers 5 0% 21
Pensioners o o 2 1% 16
_Totd L o B 100% 20
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2018 (continued)

25. Pansion commitments (continued)

At the prior year belanca sheet date, the prasent value of the defined beneflt obligation was comprised as follows:

Number of Lisbliity Duration
- - . mambers spiit (ysurm)
Active members 1 53% 21
Daferred mambers 8 % pr ]
Pansioners 2 18% 17
Total . . , 8 00% 2
The major categoriee of plan essets as 8 percentege of total plan assets are as follows:
2018 2018
] - . _ . % %
Equity securities 14 30
Debt sscurities - ] 60
Cash and cash egulvalents - 1
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the period is as follows:
Falr value Present
of plan value of
sssets obligetion Total
o om £m £m
AL 26 April 2018 B j 138 (180~ (1%
Current service cost - (0.2) (0.2)
_Interest incomaX axpense) o B - . 0.4 (0.4 -
. . - B 04 {0.8) (02
Remeasuremarts:
- Retumn on plan assets, excluding amount inciuded In interest 0.5 - 0.5
- Galn from change in demographic assumptions - 01 0.1
- Loss from change In financial assumptions - (1.0) (1.0}
_- Expefiance loases B o o - 0.2 {02
] ] . e 0.8 .1 {0.8)
Ernployer contributions 0.7 - 0.7
Beneft psyrents from plan o (0.5 05 -
At 25 april 2019 150 (18.3) (1.3
The impact of various changes in actuarial assumptions on tha present value of the scheme obligation are set out
below.
Present
value of
obligation
. o ~ _ - Bn.
0.5% decreass in discourt rate 179
1 year Increass In Iife expactancy 16.9
0.5% Increese i salary Increases 16.3
174

_0.5% increass in ikflation
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Notes to the financlal statements
for the 52 weeks snded 25 April 2019 (continued)

25. Penslon commitments (continued)

Fair value Present
of plan value of

assats  obligation Total
e £m £m £m
At 20 April 2017 131 (16.3) (3.2)
Cusrent service cost - {0.3) {0.3)
Intarest incomekaxpenes) o4 (04) -
I CUTTAT T T

Remessurements:
- Retumn on plan assets, axciuding amount Included In interest {0.1) - {0.1)
= Gain from change in demognaphic assumptiona - 1.2 1.2
- Galn from change In financial assumptions - 0.7 0.7
-Experience losses - (0.1) {0.1)
o P U S
Employer contributiona ' ' 08 -0
_Baneft payments from plen (0.1) 0.1 -
At 28 April 2018 139 (15.4) 12

The current sarvice coat and intersel income/expense s recognised In the Income statement. Remeasurements are
recognised In other comprehensive income.

Expacted contributiona to the defined benefit pension scheme for the forthcoming financial year are £0.6 milfion.

26. Related parties

During the current and prior period the Group and Company entered Into transactions, In the ordinary course of
businese, with related parties., Transactions entered into, and balances outstanding, are as follows:

Group

Balance st Balance at Balance at

20 April Movement 26 Api1  Movement 28 April

2017 In 52 wesks 2018 In 52 weaks 2019

e L gm  Em = E&m Em £m
Znc investments Sarl 1.8 (0.2) 14 (1.4 -
CP Cayman Miico 2 Limited (0.2) 0.2 - - .
BSREP |l Center Parcs Jarsay Limited {18.4) 1.9 {10.5) 10.8 -
__Center Parcs Finance Borrower Limited - - - (0.4} (0.4

Zinc investments Sarl, CP Cayman Midco 2 Limited, BSREP Il Center Parcs Jersey Limited and Center Parcs
Finance Borrower Limited share an ultimate controlling party with the Group.

The movement on the balance with Zinc Investments Sarl in the 53 weeks ended 26 April 2018 represented & partial
repayment of the balance due, offest by further funds advanced to thet company. The movement on the balance In
the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprl 2019 represents a repayment of £1.2 milllon and the distribution of the remalning
balance of £0.2 million.

The movement on the balance with CP Cayman Midco 2 Limitad in the 53 weeks ended 26 April 2018 represented
the settloment of the balance dus.

The movement on the balance with BSREP || Center Parcs Jersey Limied in the 53 weeks endad 26 April 2018
rapresentsd adiusiments to group relisf payable balances. The movement on the balance In the 52 weeka ended 25
Aprfl 2019 represents the settiement of the balance due.

The movemant on the balance with Center Parce Finance Bormower Limitad In the 62 weaks endad 26 April 2018
represents payment for group relief.

Transactions with Directors are set out in note 24 1o these financial siatements.
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26. Related parties (continued)
Company
All of the related parties below are members of the Group headed by Center Parce (Hoklings 1) Limited.
Balance at Balance at Balancs at
20 Aprdl  Movement In 20 April  Movament 28 April
2017 83 wesks 2018 In 52 weeka 2019
i L £m £m gm  gm &m
Ceanter Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited 804.5 (371.1) 2234 (223.4) -
CP Comet Holdings Limited 743 (71.3) - . -
CP Longleat Village Limited (50.9) {1.8) (27 32.7 .
Conter Parcs {Operating Companny) Limited (280.4) (16.9) (208.3) 185.4 {110.9)
Forest Midco Limited (28.2) 282 - - -
Center Parcs (Jersey) 1 Limited (174.6) (0.8) {(184.4) 184.4 -
Center Parcs Spa Division Holdings Limited {0.1) 0.1 - - -
Center Parcs Limited (12.4) ©.7 (13.1) 13.1 .
CP Comat Bidoo Limited {T1.4) T1.4 - - -
Comet Refico Limited (57.9) (3.2) (61.0) 61.0 -
Sun CP Newmidco Limited (120.M) 120.7 . - -
Center Parcs (UK} Group Limited o - {0.1) (0.1) 0.1 .
Current period movements
The movement on the balance with Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited in the 52 weeks endad 25 April 2010 reflects
tha following transactions:

s Interest racelvable of £13.7 milllon.

s A loan repayment by that company of £45.0 millon.

» Comet Refico Limlted transferred & recelveble of £63.8 milllon due from Center Parca {(Hokfings 1) Limbted
to its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdinga 3) Limited.

»  Center Parcs {Cperating Company) Limited transferred a receivable of £212.1 million due from Center Parcs
(Holdings 1) Limitad to its parent company, Center Parcs (Hokdinga 3) Limited.

s CP Longleat Village Limited distributed a recelvable of £34.1 million due from Center Parcs {Holdinga 1)
Limited to Its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited.

s Center Parcs {UK) Group Limied distributed & recelvable of £192.7 milion due from Canter Parcs (Holdings
1) Limited fo Its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limked.

=  Center Parcs {Hokiings 3) Limited distrfouted the remaining net recelvable of £310.6 milfion due from Center
Parca {(Holdings 1) Limlted to its parent company, Center Parca (Hokiings 2) Limited.

The movement on the balance with CP Longleat Vllage Limited In the 52 weeka ended 25 April 2018 represents
interest payable of £1.4 million and the subsaquani distribution of the total recelvable of £34.1 milllon by CP Longleat
Vilage Limitad to Canter Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited, its parernt company.

The movement on the balance with Center Parcs (Operating Compaeny) Limited in the 52 weeks endad 28 April 2019
reflecie the following transactions:
s Interost payabie of £13.0 million.
s Center Parcs Limited distributed a recelvable of £13.7 milllon due from Centor Parcs (Holdings 1) |imited to
ita parsnt company, Center Parcs (Operating Company) Limited.
s  Centor Parcs (Operating Company) Limlted transferred a recelvable of £212.1 milon due from Canter Parcs
{Holdings 1) |imiiad fo its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited.

The movement on tha balance with Center Parce (Jersey) 1 Limiied in the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprll 2019 represants
Interest payable of £82 milllon and the subsequent diutribution of the total recelvable of £192.6 millon by Center
Parca (Jerssy) 1 Limited to Canter Parcs {UK) Group LimHed, its parent company.

Tha movement on the balanca with Cantar Parcs Limited in the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprll 2019 reprasents interosat
payable of £0.6 millon and the subsaquent distribution of the total receivable of £13.7 milkion by Canter Parce Limited
o Centar Parcs (Operating Company) Limited, its parent company.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2019 {(continued)

26. Related parties (continued)
The movement on the balancs with Comst Refico Limited In the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprll 2019 represents interest

payabie of £2.8 miftion and the subsequent transfer of tha total receivable of £63.8 million by Comet Refico Limited to
Centar Parcs (Hoidings 3) Limited.

The movement on the balance with Center Parcs (UK) Group Limited in the 52 weska anded 25 Apd 2018
repressnts the distribution of a £162.8 milion receivable due from Center Parca (Holdings 1) Limited to that company
by Center Parcs (Jersey) 1 Limitad ae described above, and the subsequant disbtbution of the total receivable of
£192.7 million by Center Parcs (UK) Group Limlted to Centsr Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited, its parent company.

During the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprii 2019 Center Perce (Holdings 2) Limited, the Company’s subsidiary undertaking,
distributad £138.0 million of cash and £310.8 milllon of recelvables to the Company. Of these receivables, £310.6
milion was dua from Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited and £0.2 mitllon was due from Zinc Investments Sar.

Prior period movements

The movement on the balance with Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limitad in the 53 waseks anded 26 April 2018 reflacted
the following trinsactions:
» Arepayment of £223.6 miiilon.
» Forest Holdco Limited, a fellow group undertaking, disiributed a recelvable of £26.2 milion due from Center
Parcs (Holdinge 1) Limited to is parent company, Cantsr Parcs (Holdinga 3) Limited.
+« Sun CP Newtopco Limited, a fallow group undertaking, distributed a recelvable of £124.8 mifllon due from
Canter Parcs {Holdings 1) Limited to its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited.
s CP Comet Bidco Limited, a fellow group undertaking, distributed a recelvable of £73.8 million due from
Center Parcs {Hoidings 1) Limited to its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited.
e CP Comet Hoidings Limited, 8 fellow group undertaking, transforred a peyabls of £54.2 miilon due from
Conter Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited to its parent company, Canter Parcs (Holdings 3) Limlad.
s Interest of £26.2 millon was receivable during the period.

The movement on the balance with CP Comet Holdings Limlted In the 53 weeks endad 26 April 2018 rspresented the
following transactions:
* |nterest recaivable of £3.9 milllon.
* Interest payabile of £0.5 milllon.
s The walver of £20.56 million of the balence due.
s Thae transfer of the remaining balance of £64.2 millon from CP Comet Holdings Limited to Center Parcs
{Hokdings 3) Limitad a8 described above.

The movement on the balance with Forest Midco Limitad In the 53 weeks ended 268 April 2018 represented the
following transactions:
s Intereet payable of £1.0 million.
s Forest Midco Limitad distributed a receivable of £29.2 mikion due from Center Pares {(Holdings 1) Limited to
ite parant company, Forest Holdco Limied. This was subsequently distributed by Forest Holdco Limited to
Center Parcs (Hoidings 3) Limited, as described above.

The movement on the balance with Center Parcs Spa Division Holdings Limited in the 53 weeska andad 26 April 2018
reprosentad the distribution of the balance due from Canter Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited to ks parent company, Center
Parcs (UK) Group Limited,

The movement on the balance with CP Comet Bidco Limited in the 53 weeks ended 26 Aprll 2018 represaitted the
following transactions:
e Interest payable of £2.5 million.
e CP Comet Bidco Limited distributed a recelvable of £73.9 million due from Center Parcs (Holdings 1)
Limited to its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limited, as described above.

The movement on the balance with Sun CP Newmidco Limited in the 53 weeka ended 26 April 2018 represented the
following transactions:
+ Interest payable of £4.1 million.
¢ Sun CP Newmidco Limited distributed a recelvable of £124.8 million due from Center Parcs (Holdings 1)
Limited to its parent company, Center Parcs (Holdings 3) Limitad, es desctibed above.
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26. Related parties (continued)

The movement on the balance with Center Parcs (UK) Group Limited in the 53 weeka ended 28 April 2018
represonted the distribution of a receivabie by Centar Parcs Spa Division Holdings Limited a& described above.

The movements on the balances with CP Longlest Village Limited, Center Parcs (Operating Company) Limited,
Center Parcs (Jersey) 1 Limited, Center Parcs Limited and Comet Refico Limited in the 53 weeks ended 28 Apri
2018 represented interest payable,

During the 53 weeks anded 26 April 2018 Center Parcs (Holdings 2) Limited, the Company’s subsidiary undertaking,
declared and paki dividends to Center Parca (Hoidings 1) Limited totalling £74.5 milllon.

27. Subsidiary undertakings

The share capitals of all subsidiary undertakings am designeted as ordinary shares.

All the subsidiary undertakings set out below are Included in the conaolidated finenclal statemerds. All sharsholdings

represant 100% of the aquity and voting rights. All of the subsidiary undertakings listed ars held by other subsidiary
undertakings of the Company, with the axcaption of Center Parcs (Holdings 2) Limited.

_Subwidiary undertaking __ Activiky Country of Incorporation
Cantear Parcs (Operating Company) Limited Operstion of four holiday vilages  England and Wales
CP Woburn (Operating Company) Limited Operation of one holiday villags England and Weles
Canter Parcs Limited Employee services provider England and Wales
CP Sherwood Village Limited Investment property company England and Wales
CP Eiveden Viliage Limited Investment property company England and Wales
Longleat Property Limited Investiment property company England and Wales
CP Whinfell Viliags Lirmnited Inmvesiment property company England and Wales
Centar Parcs (Holdings 2) Limited Intermadiate hokling compeany England and Wales
Center Parcs (HoldIngs 3) Limite Intermediate holding compeny England and Wales
Center Parcs (UK) Group Limited intermediate hoiding company England and Wales
CP Longieat Village Limited intermediata holding company England and Wales
8PV2 Limited Investment company England and Wales
Comet Refico Limited Non-trading England and Walea
Canter Parcs (Jersey) 1 Limited Non-irading Jarsey
SPV1 Limited Dormant England and Wales

Umited Dormant England and Wales
Carp (UK} 1 Limited Dormant England and Wales

The regll:?md office of ali subsidiary underiakings Is One Edison Rise, New Ollerton, Newark, Nottinghamshire,
NG22 .

Subsidiary sudit sxemptions

Center Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited has lesued gusrantess over the Hablitties of the following companles at 25 April
2018 under section 470C of the Companies Act 20068 and thase entiies are axampt from the requiremernts of the Act
relating to the audit of their individual financial etatements by virtue of section 478A of the Act.

Center Parcs Limited (reglstarad no. 01908230)
Ceontsr Parcs (Holdings 2) Limited {registerad no. 07658407}
Ceontor Parcs (UK) Group Limhed  (registered no. 049746681)
CP Longleat Village Limited (repisterad no. 076583986)
Comet Refico Limited {rogistered no. 05994316)
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28. Structured entity — CPUK Finance Limited

CPUK Finance Limited was Incorporated in Jersey on 20 July 2011 and Issued the secured debt set out In note 16 to
the financial statements. The summarised financial statements of CPUK Finance Limited are as follows:

S2wesks 53 wegkn
ended 25 ended 26
Apri 2019  Apd 2018
_income statement ~ fm £m
Finance expense (91.3) {110.6)
Profit/{loss) for the period sttributsble to equky shereholders - (0.1)
Ths profit/{loss) for the period attributabie to equity sharsholders represents total comprehensive Incoms.
As at As at
28 Aprll 26 April
2019 2018
_Balance sheet s o Em £m
Asssts ’
Amounts due from the Cener Parcs (Holdings 1) Limited Group 1,000.0 1,768.8
Other receivables 18.0 13.0
Cash and cash aquivelents 0.1 -
Lisbilitles
Secured debt (1.900.0)  (1,765.6)
Other payablas (181 (130
Total squilty - -
f2wesks 53 weels
ehded 23 snded 268
Aprfl 2019 April 2018
Cash fiow statement e Rm £m
invasting activities
Intsrest received g8 83.6
Re!mbursemant of break costs 8.1 20.0
Reimbursement of lssue costs 40 9.3
Loans repaid by reiated parties 350.0 560.0
Losns advanced to related portios L e 48an 838.5!
Nst cash outflow from investing sctivities o (40.2} {150.7)
Financing activities
Interest paid {81.8) (83.7)
Broak costs on secured dabt (8.1) (26.9)
Issue coats on secured debt {4.8) (68.3)
Repayment of axternal borrowings (350.0) (560.0)
from extemal borrowings o - 4827 839.5
. Net cash Inflow from financing activities 40.3 159.6
Nst Increasai{decrease) In cash and cash squivalents 0.4 0.1

The registsred office of CPUK Finance | imited ls 44 Esplanade St Heller, Jersey, Channel Islands, JE4 SWG.
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28. Ultimate parent company and controlling parties

The immediate parent company Is CP Cayman Limited, a company registerad in the Cayman Islanda. The ulimate
parent company and controfiing party is Brookfield Assst Management Inc., a company incorporated In Canada.

The iamgost group In which the results of the Company are consclidated is that headed by Brookflsid Asset
NManagem

ent inc. The consolidated finencial statements of Brookfleld Asset Managomet inc. ere avallable to the
public and may bs obtained from its registered office at Brookfleld Place, Sulte 300, 181 Bay Street, Toromto, ON
M5.J 2T3.

No company in the Untted Kingdom consolidates the results of the Center Parcs {Holdings 1) Limitad Group.
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